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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual report of 21 Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2012.

The property agency business in Hong Kong reported a revenue of
HK$100.7 million, representing an increase of about HK$43.0 million or
74.2% from last year. We shall continue to ride on the Century 21
name to expand the franchising network and broaden our service
scope.

The property agency segment in the mainland of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") recorded a loss of HK$64.7 million for the year as
a result of the continued implementation of series of tightening
measures in the real estate market and the macro-economy by the
PRC government since 2011. During the year 2012, the management
had slowed down the pace of business expansion, taken a series of
cost saving measures and re-examined the performance of various
projects. These efforts had effectively reduced the administrative
expenses of this segment by HK$3.1 million or 20.1% from last year of
HK$15.5 million.

During the year under review, the Company had undergone capital
reorganisation for the purpose of allowing greater flexibility in future
fund raisings from the equity market. In January 2013, the Company
had successfully raised funds for general working capital by a new
share placement.

Following the implementation of new measures in the property market
in Hong Kong in October 2012 and February 2013 by the government,
the property transaction volume has significantly reduced. We shall
continue to monitor the effects of these measures on our business
and adjust timely our operation to keep up our market niche.

The property market in mainland China has showed signs of
improvement in the beginning of 2013. Though the price of residential
property remained stable as a result of the continued suppressing
measures of the central and provincial governments in mainland
China, the market picked up gradually in transaction volume in major
cities. In the midst of the continuation of the tightening measures in
the real estate market of mainland China, we believe that the real
estate industry in mainland China would continue to be subdued in
the foreseeable future.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

2013 is a challenging year for our property agency business in both
Hong Kong and mainland China. Our existing business network and
established operation systems are legacy for the Group to remain
competitive in the property agency market. We shall actively integrate
our resources in different business segments to weather any
unexpected economic and market changes. We are committed to
effectively manage our resources to create shareholder value and
foster high profit potential business opportunities for the Group.

Before closing, | would like to thank my fellow directors for their
valuable contribution and our shareholders, business partners and
bankers for their continued support and confidence throughout the
years and express my appreciation to all our staff for delivering
professional and dedicated efforts to the sustainable development of
the Group.

Ng Kai Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

BUSINESS AND OPERATION REVIEW

PROPERTY AGENCY IN HONG KONG

The property agency segment in Hong Kong reported a revenue of
HK$100.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2012, an increase of
about 74.2% as compared with HK$57.8 million for last year, which is
mainly contributed by launching of a number of larger scale residential
projects by the real estate developers and the release of accumulated
purchasing power in Hong Kong. Operating profits from the property
agency segment in Hong Kong for the year amounted to HK$3.7 million
(excluding any provision for impairment loss on goodwill of HK$10.0
million) whilst the operating profit for last year was HK$0.2 million
(excluding any provision for impairment loss on goodwill of HK$54.0
million).
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PROPERTY AGENCY IN THE PRC

The performance of this segment was continuously affected by the
PRC government's continued restrictive policies and credit tightening
since the second half of 2011. Revenue generate from this segment
for the year ended 31 December 2012 was HK$12.0 million, an
increase of about 12.1% as compared with HK$10.7 million for last
year. The operating loss was HK$7.9 million (excluding amortisation of
intangible assets, provisions for impairment loss on intangible assets
and goodwill of HK$16.9 million, HK$20.0 million and HK$19.9 million
respectively), whilst the operating loss for last year was HK$8.2 million
(excluding amortisation of intangible assets and provision for
impairment loss on goodwill of HK$17.3 million and HK$93.3 million
respectively).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWR DN

The management observed that the unfavorable operating
environment had continued in the year 2012 causing prolonged delays
in property projects and sluggish land and property transactions in the
PRC. Accordingly, the property agency business in the PRC had been
reengineered to cope with this poor market sentiment and business
plan had been conservatively revised to reflect the dampened revenue
growth in the following years as compared to those previously
expected.

TOY PRODUCTS TRADING

During the year, the scale of toy products trading business has
significantly curtailed with the adoption of twin line strategies on
careful customers’ selection and tight control on expenditure.
Revenue from the toy products trading segment for the year ended 31
December 2012 was HK$23.9 million (2011: HK$196.1 million),
representing an decrease of HK$172.2 million or 87.8% from last year.
As a result of further reduction in selling and distribution cost and
administrative expenses, this segment recorded a loss of HK$1.5
million in year 2012, a mitigation of HK$4.0 million compared to a 10ss
of HK$5.5 million in last corresponding year.

SECURITIES TRADING AND INVESTMENTS

The segment reported a profit of HK$12.9 million mainly due to an
overall appreciation in fair value of the Group'’s investments held for
trading of HK$7.2 million.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has investments held for trading
amounting to HK$76.7 million (as at 31 December 2011: HK$52.2
million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVIEW OF RESULTS

The Group reported a consolidated revenue of HK$136.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012, being a decline of HK$128.0 million
or 48.4% when compared with that of last year. Gross profit was
HK$32.9 million, an increase of 12.3% from HK$29.3 million for 2011.
Decrease in revenue with improvement in gross profit was principally
due to tightening in cost control and improved resources application
in toys trading business and property agency business. Moreover,
selling and distribution costs and administrative expenses of the
Group decreased by HK$3.7 million and HK$7.4 million, respectively.

The Group recorded other gains of HK$3.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2012 (for the year ended 31 December 2011: other
losses of HK$8.9 million), which was mainly attributed to net gain on
investments held for trading of HK$7.2 million and impairment loss on
trade receivables of HK$4.0 million.

In combination of the above factors, together with provision for
impairment loss on goodwill of HK$29.9 million, impairment loss on
intangible assets of HK$20.0 million and amortisation of intangible
assets of HK$16.9 million, the Group recorded a loss of HK$57.1 million
for this reporting year, a decrease of HK$137.1 million or 70.6% when
compared with that of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFNWR DN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group maintained sufficient working capital as at 31 December
2012 with bank balances and cash of HK$108.1 million (31 December
2011: HK$84.7 million).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has obligations under a finance
lease of HK$0.1 million (31 December 2011: HK$0.3 million).

Gearing ratio, expressed as the percentage of total borrowings over
total capital, of the Group as at 31 December 2012 was 0.1% (31
December 2011: 0.1%). Total capital is calculated as total equity plus
total borrowings.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 December 2012, the Company has 267,759,235 shares of
HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”) in issue.

On 18 June 2012, the Company effected a capital reorganisation,
which included (i) share consolidation of every five issued shares of
par value HK$0.01 each into one issued consolidated share of par
value HK$0.05 each; (i) capital reduction of the par value of each
issued consolidated share from HK$0.05 to HK$0.01 by cancellation of
HK$0.04 of the paid-up capital on each issued consolidated share; and
(ili) cancellation of the entire amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWR DN

A total of credit of approximately HK$113.5 million arisen from the
capital reorganisation was credited to the contributed surplus account
of the Company and will be applied for setting off the accumulated
losses of the Company.

On 31 January 2013, the Company had completed a placing of 53
million new Shares and received a net proceed of HK$11.9 million for
general working capital.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, certain property, plant and machinery with
carrying values of HK$0.3 million (31 December 2011: HK$0.4 million)
represented assets held under finance leases.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATES

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and
Renminbi. The Group’s exposure to United States dollars currency risk
is minimal as Hong Kong dollars is pegged to United States dollars.
Nevertheless, operations and performances of the Group might be
affected by the fluctuation of Renminbi and Pound Sterling. Presently,
the Group does not have any currency hedging policy but will closely
monitor Renminbi and Pound Sterling exchange rate and take
appropriate measures to minimise any adverse impact that may be
caused by its fluctuation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LITIGATION
Details of the litigation are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 64 employees and 231
agents. To attract, retain and motivate its employees, the Group has
developed effective remuneration policies that are subject to review
on regular basis. The Group’s employees are remunerated with
competitive packages which are in line with prevailing industry
practice and individual performance. Furthermore, share option and
performance-based bonus scheme are also in place to recognise the
outstanding employees.

BEEFNWR DN
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Senior Management Profile
BREEEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Kai Man, aged 58, joined the Company as an executive
director in July 2008 and has been designated as the Chairman with
effect from 1 July 2009. He is also appointed as the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ng holds a master degree from the
London School of Economics & Political Sciences, University of London
in the United Kingdom. Mr. Ng had held senior positions in Mandarin
Property Consultants Limited, The Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A., World
Trade Group and The Bank of Canton. He possesses extensive
experience in real estate industry and is the founder of Century 21
Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, aged 52, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in October 2007 and has been re-designated as
an executive director with effect from 1 May 2010. He is also
appointed as the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Cheng is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario,
Canada. Mr. Cheng holds a Master of Science (Economics) degree in
Accounting and Finance and a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in
Accounting.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, aged 57, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in June 2009. He is a fellow
member of each of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
in the United Kingdom. He holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from the University of Adelaide in Australia. He has over 25
years of experience in property investment, corporate finance and
media and entertainment business.
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Senior Management Profile

Mr. Ding Chung Keung, aged 43, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in September 2011. Mr. Ding
holds a bachelor degree in business administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Ding is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has been in the
investment, audit and finance industries for more than twenty years.

Ms. Cheung Sze Man, aged 42, joined the Company as the
independent non-executive director in November 2011. She graduated
from the University of Auckland in New Zealand with a Bachelor of
Commerce degree and a Bachelor of Arts degree. Ms. Cheung also
holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the University
of Bradford in the United Kingdom. She is a member of both the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia. Ms.
Cheung has accumulated audit experience in an international
accounting firm and has substantial experiences in corporate finance,
accounting and human resource management by holding senior
positions in private and public listed companies.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) considers that
maintaining corporate governance at high standard is essential for
enhancing accountability and transparency of a company to the
investing public and other stakeholders. Therefore, the Company is
committed to practice good corporate governance for corporate
sustainability and business growth.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

On 1 April 2012, the Code on Corporate Governance Practice as listed
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Former CG Code"”) was amended and
renamed as Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “New CG Code"). Throughout the year ended 31 December
2012, the Company has applied the principles and complied with the
code provisions set out in both of the Former CG Code and the New
CG Code except for the deviations from Codes A.2.1, A.4.1 and A.6.7,
details of which are described in this Corporate Governance Report.
The current practices of the Company will be reviewed and updated
regularly to follow the latest practices in corporate governance.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
the directors’ securities transaction. Having made specific enquiry, all
directors confirmed that they fully complied with the Model Code
throughout the year.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES

The Board is vested with the key roles of formulating the Group's
corporate strategic directions and policies; monitoring the financial
performance and internal control system of the Group and overseeing
the performance of management, which is delegated with the
responsibilities of executing the Board’s decision and in-charging day-
to-day operation. The Board meets regularly and acts in good faith,
with due diligence and care.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. The statement made by the
auditor of the Company regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report
on pages 31 to 32 of this annual report.

The Company currently has 5 directors (one of which is a lady). The
Board comprises two executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors, whose biographies are set out on pages 12 to 13
of this annual report. All the directors are high caliber executives with
diversified industry expertise and bring a wide range of skills and
experience to the Group.

The Board has established 3 Board committees, namely audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee to
oversee particular aspect of the Group’s affair. Each of the committees
had defined terms of reference setting out its duty, power and
functions, which was either revised or adopted on 12 March 2012
pursuant to New CG Code to be effective on 1 April 2012.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

The composition of the Board and their respective attendance in the
general meetings, Board meetings and other committee meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2012 are as follows:

BE-_E——F+-A=+—HIEE B
R EEERREAS B HENEMETE
LB MEENEERNT

No. of meetings attended/held

HE/BITERRY
Regular Audit Remuneration  Nomination
General full board Committee ~ Committee  Committee
meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings
(i3 Ezg ERZEE FMEEE REZEE
& 2EREME E 6 =f
Executive directors HiTEE

Ng Kai Man (Chairman) RER(FE) 2/2 4/4 - 1/1 -
Cheng Yuk Wo el 212 4/4 - - -

Independent non-executive directors B HEHITEE
Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard Ep[$ 112 474 3/3 11 111
Ding Chung Keung T fheg 2/2 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1
Cheung Sze Man RS 2/2 4/4 3/3 - 1/1

Pursuant to Code A.6.7 of the New CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
the general meetings of the Company. An independent non-executive
director was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 25 May 2012 due to other engagement.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to Code A.2.1 of the Former CG Code and the New CG Code,
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Ng Kai Man (“Mr. Ng") has been designated as the Chairman of the
Company with effect from 1 July 2009 and takes up the leadership role
to ensure that the Board works effectively in discharging its
responsibilities and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed
by the Board in a timely manner. Mr. Ng, who is the founder of the
property agency business of the Group and has considerable
experience in real estate industry, also carries out the function of chief
executive officer of the Group. Taken into account that there is a
strong and independent non-executive element on the Board and a
clear division of responsibility in running the business of the Group,
the Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

None of the non-executive directors of the Company is appointed for
specific term which is deviated from Code A.4.1 of the Former CG
Code and the New CG Code. However, as the directors are subject to
retirement by rotation provisions under the bye-laws of the Company,
the Board considers that sufficient measures have been in place to
ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no
less exacting than the New CG Code.

INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

On 29 June 2012, Mr. Ng has entered into a services agreement with a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 1 July 2012, subject to termination by the Company
and Mr. Ng by giving not less than three months’ notice in writing.
Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Ng is entitled to a monthly salary of
HK$50,000 and a bonus to be decided at the sole discretion of the
Company.

Save for the above, there is no change in Directors’ information since
30 March 2012, the date of the 2011 annual report of the Company,
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.

TRAINING
The Company has from time to time provided directors with materials
to relating to the business and operations of the Group and their
responsibilities under the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements.

During the year, the Company has arranged for a professional firm to
conduct a training session for directors relating to the roles, functions
and duties of a listed company director under the Code A.6.5 of the
New CG Code.

The Directors has each confirmed that they have attended training
courses relevant to their directorship during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for liabilities
in respect of legal actions against Directors and officers of the
Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the
Group under Code A.1.8 of the New CG Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has undertaken to perform corporate governance duties
and adopted the terms of reference on corporate governance
functions on 27 March 2012 for better management of the business
and affairs of the Group.

The duties of the Board in respect of corporate governance functions
shall be:

() to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance,

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v)  to review the Company's compliance with the code provisions
set out in the New CG Code and Corporate Governance Report
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules on Stock Exchange
and its disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance
Report.

18 21 HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2012

EEREABEZEERE

ARBEREFEETUEAISETRIRARF R
HIfBAREZEZERSABBEAA LY AR
BmES < BETIBEEMRRTHE -

ERERRE
AERIEEEBRUBEE EFGCETLE
EABEIN T —F=A-tLERMOEE
A AL B AEHE -

~

() HIEMBIARBNEEEARRLER

(iy BEHMEREELRSRAEEENRIILEES
XBER:

(i) WIMERARFTNBELERELGAMNER
REERE

(iv) ®HIE - BARERERANEE NEENTAT
ARARFMEnE) : &

(V) ARET AN B8 ST R A A T AR A B 8 A T P
FE TR REEEAMSE 25T RMRUA KR
EEABEZHERENIER -



Corporate Governance Report

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard
(committee chairman), Mr. Ding Chung Keung and Ms. Cheung Sze
Man. The main role and functions of the audit committee are to review
the financial information of the Company, to oversee the Company’s
financial reporting system and internal control procedure and maintain
relations with the auditors of the Company.

In 2012, the audit committee had held three meetings, all were
attended by Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, Mr. Ding Chung Keung and Ms.
Cheung Sze Man. During the meetings, the annual results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2011 was reviewed with the auditors
of the Company; the report on the internal control system for year
2011 was evaluated; the interim results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2012 was discussed; and the audit planning for
2012 was debriefed.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company was set up with key
responsibilities of recommending to the Board the policy and structure
for remuneration of directors and senior management and
determining the remuneration package of executive directors and
senior management. The Board retains the final authority to approve
the remuneration packages.

The remuneration committee composed of Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard
(committee chairman with effect from 12 March 2012), Mr. Ng Kai Man
and Mr. Ding Chung Keung. The committee members met once in the
year ended 31 December 2012 for reviewing the service agreement of
the executive director and chairman of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company was established on 12
March 2012 with key responsibilities for considering and approving the
appointment of members of the Board and will meet to discuss when
nomination of new director(s) is received or when circumstances
require. In considering the suitability of a candidate for directorship,
the Board will take into account the candidate’s qualification,
experience, expertise and knowledge as well as the prevailing
composition, structure and size of the Board and the requirements
under the Listing Rules.
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The nomination committee composed of Mr. Ding Chung Keung
(committee chairman), Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard and Ms. Cheung Sze
Man. The committee members met once in the year ended 31
December 2012 for discussing the structure, size and composition of
the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

On 1 March 2013, Ms. Ma Wai Man, Catherine (“Ms. Ma") was
appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company in place of Ms.
Chiu Lo.

Ms. Ma has taken relevant professional trainings in 2012 and is a
holder of the Practitioner’'s Endorsement (2012/13) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that an effective internal control system
which is designed to monitor and response appropriately to significant
risk, to safeguard assets, to provide reasonable assurance from fraud
and errors and to ensure compliance of applicable law and regulations
is essential for effective and efficient operations of a company.
Furthermore, the internal control system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has in place an effective internal control system which
encompasses sound control environment, appropriate segregation of
duties, well-defined policies and procedures, close monitoring and is
reviewed and enhanced by the management at regular intervals.

The Board, with the assistance of management and an external firm,
has conducted a review on the effectiveness of the internal control
system and, in particular, key business cycles of real estate agency
business segment in Hong Kong were reviewed for the year ended 31
December 2012. Based on the report on the findings which include
recommendations for further improvement, the Directors were
satisfied that the Group has operated an effective internal control
system during the year under review.

The Board had adopted a whistle blowing policy including procedures

for employees to report any irregularities on the affairs of the
Company on 30 March 2012.
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INFORMATION ON SHAREHOLDERS
COMMUNICATION AND RIGHTS

Shareholders” Communication Policy was adopted by the Board on 27
March 2012. Shareholders” Communication Policy and shareholder’s
rights are published on the website of the Company.

RIGHT TO PUT ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F.,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
Enquiries other than shareholdings may be directed to the head office
and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong as set
out in the Corporation Information on pages 2 to 3 of this annual
report for the attention of the Company Secretary.

RIGHT TO CONVENE SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING
Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies Act and the bye-
law 62 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, the shareholder(s) of the
Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of
the deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may request the Board to convene a special general
meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of
the Company at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda for the attention of the Company Secretary and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

If the directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2012, remuneration in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by the auditor of the Company
to the Group are approximately HK$1,235,000 (2011: HK$1,181,000)
and HK$506,000 (2011: HK$1,103,000) respectively.

INFORMATION ON CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company effected a share consolidation and capital reduction on
18 June 2012. On 31 January 2013, the Company completed a placing
of 53,000,000 new shares. As at the date of this report the Company
has 320,759,235 shares of HK$0.01 each in issue.

A consolidated version the Memorandum and New Bye-Laws of the
Company was adopted by the Board and published on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange on 12 March 2012. Save for the
above, there was no significant changes to the constitutional
documents of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2012,

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintains a website at http://www.irasia.com/listco/
hk/21holdings/ where information and updates on the list of directors
and their roles and functions, constitutional documents, terms of
reference of the Board committees, procedures for nomination of
directors for election, announcements, circulars and reports released
to the Stock Exchange and other information are posted. Information
on the Company'’s website will be updated from time to time.
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The directors present their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in provision of property agency and related
services, trading of toy, gift and premium products and securities
trading and investments.

Details of the activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. An analysis of revenue and results
by principal activities and geographical locations of the Group are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
33.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 36.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ng Kai Man (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard

Mr. Ding Chung Keung

Ms. Cheung Sze Man

The directors retiring by rotation in accordance with Bye-law 99 are
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard and Mr. Ding Chung Keung, both of them,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

No directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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The non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”) and considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company and their associates in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN THE ORDINARY SHARES OF
HK$0.01 EACH OF THE COMPANY (THE “SHARES")
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company or any of their associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying share
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the Shares held by Mr. Ng as disclosed in the section
“Directors’ Interest in Securities” of this Directors’ Report, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
and the section “Directors’ Interest in Securities” of this Directors’
Report, no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during
or at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

Directors’ Report

EE®RE

EERBERB RS

Interests of the directors in competing businesses to the Group asat W-E——F+-_A=+—H EERALEE 5

31 December 2012 required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of

the Listing Rules were set out as below:

Name of Director
EENE

Name of entity
EREE

BN

Nature of
competing business
BMEEKIME

FEKD  AREETRAESIOGREZ ERH

Nature of interest
EEME

Note:

Mr. Ng has resigned as a director of 21 Finance Limited with effect from 27 March 2012.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors was interested in any
business, apart from the business of the Group, which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the

Group.

Century 21 Best Mortgage
Limited
A 2R BEPEERAF

Century 21 Singapore Holdings

Pte Limited

Century 21 Real Estate of
Taiwan Ltd.

21 Finance Limited

1B BRAR]

provision of agency services
for mortgage financing
RIEBRERERIERS

provision of franchise and
property agency services
in Singapore

ROFT IR IR RT S 2 2
YR AR

provision of franchise and
property agency services
in Taiwan
REERHFTRE R
RIBRH

provision of agency services
for mortgage financing
RILERERERIERS

Wi

HEAERY ©

B LR BEEIN

AIRERBA B A&
BEON) R E s

director and shareholder

BEERER

director and shareholder

EEMBR

director and shareholder

EENMBR

director (Note)

E= (M)

RAEECBHANVBERARESE B2 —F=A=++H

MEEENEAREXBEKH
BF MRS (FRAREZE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short position of those
person (other than the directors and chief executive of the Company)
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company representing five
percent or more in the issued share capital of the Company and
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRES

RZEBE——F+-_A=+—H U TAL(ERRAE
ERITHABERIN AR B G s ARER G P S
HERAABEBITIAS% SA L Z TR AT
RENARFIRERES LB ERIIFEIBEETE
2 EEC

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares shareholding
BRRERB 514 RBEE BHARET S
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(B (B&E2)
Tomson Group Limited (“Tomson”) Interest of controlled 29,354,200 10.96%
corporations
HEEBBERAT(SE]D REFNER 2 R
Hsu Feng Interest of controlled 29,354,200 10.96%
corporations
4R RESEE 2 s
Tong Albert Interest of controlled 29,345,200 10.96%
corporations
el RIEFNEE 2 AR
Tong Chi Kar, Charles Interest of controlled 29,345,200 10.96%
corporations
&5 REEHDEE 2 s
Notes: BT
1. The 29,354,200 Shares were held by Humphreys Estate (Strawberry Houses) 1. 2% 29,354,200 & % 7 F2 Humphreys Estate (Strawberry Houses)

28

Limited, which was indirectly wholly-owned by Tomson through Tomson
Investment Limited and Tomson Financial Investment Limited. As disclosed by the
relevant disclosure notices on 15 October 2012, (i) approximately 7.71% and
10.77% interests in the total issued share capital of Tomson was held by E-Shares
Investments Limited (“E-Shares”) and King China Holdings Limited (“King China")
respectively; (i) Madam Hsu Feng held the entire interests of E-Shares and King
China and approximately 9.45% interests in the total issued share capital of
Tomson; and (iii) Mr. Tong Albert and Mr. Tong Chi Kar, Charles held approximately
11.74% and 11.28% interests in the total issued share capital of Tomson
respectively.

The percentage of shareholding in the Company is calculated based on 267,759,235
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2012.

21 HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Limited#5 - ZARHSEBERSEREERARLSGE
MR ERRARIMEE2ERS - HNEBEBRRAOEMN
BE RZE——F+A+HEB (\RNEZECRITRAEEE
R #97.71% K #710.77% 4 7 5 Bl 8 E-Shares Investments
Limited ([E-Shares ) & 2= BMAR AR ([$BE DIFH : (i)
#RiE 2z T B E-Shares iR E 2 $iEss - U RIBEE 1T
IRAARFER 4 9.45% #Ews R (i) 5 FREE RS FREE
PDRIFEISE D BEITIRABEER L) 11.74% K 11.28% fEwm °

2. RARRZBEED L IRER =T —=—F+=-A=+—
H 2 267,759,235 IR E BT DEHE -



SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no
outstanding share options at 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012
and no share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend,
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@ itis, or would after payment be, unable to pay it liabilities as they
become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2012 including
contributed surplus amounted to approximately HK$135,128,000 (2011:
HK$82,967,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of purchases of the Group attributable to the largest
supplier and the five largest suppliers combined are 21.4% and 43.7%
respectively.

The percentage of turnover of the Group attributable to the largest
customer and the five largest customers combined are 18.0% and
44.9% respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than five percent of the
Company’s share capital) had any interest in the five largest suppliers
or customers of the Group.

Directors’ Report
EERE

B

AAR 2 ERESEFERANGES M B mERM T
3N - RZE—ZF—-—A—BAERZE—Z=-F+=A8
=t+—B WERKRTECERE REE_T
—ZFFT A=+ —ALFENEBEREDER
o 1T AESEEAR I -

2NN WA RS D
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HIE

@ ARFEBINFLDIRERELZEEIRNA
e

&

b ARAEEZAZREEGEAMENEEER
EBRITRAMBD G E 2 BE -

BERAE RE——F+-_A=+—8 ' &ARQ7A
ARSI TRENEE(EREHABR)DABE
135,128,000 7T (= ZF——4F : B ¥ 82,967,0007T) °

FEEFRMER
AEEFAHEFHEAANEERS B G AEEF
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

DONATIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group made donation
amounting to HK$1,000.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as an auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Ng Kai Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2012
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

Deloitte.
=2)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF 21 HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of 21 Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 33 to 125, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

BYZEAMRE

H21EZERERAF
(REFRZELMHALZ BRAF])
ERERE

AZEAE TR EZSENFEIBEE 1258 22112 K
ERAR(ERADREMBAR(SGBAIES
B 2iZxealBHE  2ERE—Z=F+=H4
=+ —AZGREUBRAER  UREBEZAILFE
ZIEEEHNER SAEREHRLEERERN
X URFTEGHEEBZEREMBBER

EERGREMBBRRAREZER

BERREZARARBEEBEHAMAGRMHZER
MBS ERI R BB QRG] 2 WEARTERBEIED
BEEMAFERZEAVMBHRER YREERES
RBVBEZ NEENE - WEREZFHEA M BREK
PHEHEHRRFRERERZERATERL -

BB 2 EE

Az R EEREFZ TEZEREZEFRE
MBMRERBR  YRRARERFDEF I KE
MEBERERBEAZBMZER M EEMA
® o AZBE T e AR ENTHEMEMAL
BREIREEMET - ARBECRBET B G
NERMZ BB EANETER - BLEERIER
RAZEEN B TEERE - WREIRITER - A
BHEFER AV RE TR FE A EAHRBRAL -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
MEZEHWBAE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—E——F —ET——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
5T BT T BT
Revenue WS 7 136,613 264,565
Cost of sales and service rendered $HE RIB AR TSR A (103,749) (235,258)
Gross profit S| 32,864 29,307
Investment and other income & REMA 9A 6,847 2,160
Other gains (l0sses) Hipuzs (E18) 9B 3,156 (8,935)
Selling and distribution costs SHE R HEKA (2,415) (6,100)
Administrative expenses THRAX (39,497) (46,907)
Amortisation of intangible assets BiEmPEE 20 (16,927) (17,296)
Provision for losses on litigation SFEATE R 2 B 34 - (3,000)
Impairment loss on intangible assets BILEEZRERIE 20 (19,986) -
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZREEIE 19 (29,893) (147,309)
Finance costs W% EA 10 (9) (264)
Loss before tax bR B S 18 (65,860) (198,344)
Income tax credit FriS B e 1 8,801 4,141
Loss for the year REEER 12 (57,059) (194,203)
Other comprehensive income EmEmes
Exchange differences arising on translation & FrE4 2 EH =% 98 5,639
Total comprehensive expense for the year ZAEE 2T H S 4258 (56,961) (188,564)
Loss for the year attributable to: JE(GANFEEE -
Owners of the Company ZN/NSIEZE N (56,500) (189,511)
Non-controlling interests FEfE e (559) (4,692)
(57,059) (194,203)
Total comprehensive expense Eh2HEAS 2%
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZE N (56,402) (183,872)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR R (559) (4,692)
(56,961) (188,564)
(Restated)
(E31)
Loss per share (HK dollar) BiREE (BE)
— Basic and diluted —EARREE 16 (0.21) (1.24)
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Cconsolidated Statement of Financial Position

a MR R R

At 31 December 2012 W_ZE——F+-A=+—H

2012 2011
—E——F —E——fF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M BET T BET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NRE 17 3,095 3,607
Note receivable it 18 9,136 -
Goodwill (S 19 28,000 57,944
Intangible assets mEEE 20 34,055 70,791
74,286 132,342
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade and other receivables JE AR SR % E A i U R IE 21 42,408 100,029
Investments held for trading BHIEEE2KRE 22 76,715 52,177
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 23 108,112 84,655
227,235 236,861
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Trade and other payables FEAS BR FX A E i JE AN R IE 24 136,527 138,825
Tax payable FESFRIE 1,884 936
Obligations under a finance lease BEHEEMT 25 113 187
138,524 139,948
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 88,711 96,913
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHABERABEE
LIABILITIES 162,997 229,255
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBAE
Obligations under a finance lease BEHEET 25 - 113
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIEAE 26 8,514 17,698
8,514 17,811
NET ASSETS EEFE 154,483 211,444
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position

E MR R R

At 31 December 2012 W-_ZE——F+_-_A=+—H

2012 2011
—E-——fF —E——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
F5E BT T BT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES RA R %4

Share capital A% 7R 27 2,678 13,388
Reserves ] 157,056 202,748

Equity attributable to owners of RARHE AEGEER
the Company 159,734 216,136
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 (5,251) (4,692)
TOTAL EQUITY ERER 154,483 211,444

The consolidated financial statements on pages 33 to 125 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26
March 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ng Kai Man
REE
DIRECTOR
EE

REJBEERIDBEZEEVBERENR_TE—=F=
A= H

Cheng Yuk Wo

BB
DIRECTOR
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &=z

—

o=t AILER

Convertible
notes Non-
Share Share Capital Contributed equity  Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve surplus reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
(Note)
TRREE
BA  ROBE EARE BEBE%  EREE EXRE  RHER g FERER okl
(MzE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AEFr  AETr BTt A%Tr  BETr  A%Tx BT A%Tr  BETr A%Trx
At 1 January 2011 RZE—%—F—-H 1127 - 2,099 281,147 7904 - (242,166) 50,111 - 50,111
Loss for the year REEER - - - - - - (189511 (189,51) (4,692 (194,203)
Exchange differences arising on BERNEREEL
translation of foreign operation ERESE - - - - - 5,639 - 5,639 - 5,639
Total comprehensive expense AEEEZARTER
for the year - - - - - 5,639 (189,511) (183,872) (4,692) (188,564)
Issue of shares under rights HiRmETRG
issues (note 27) (W3E27) 23,170 309,956 - - - - - 333,126 - 333,126
Issue of shares upon placing of RRHEREMETRN
shares (notes 27) (Mzx27) 2479 24,790 - - - - - 27,269 - 27,269
Share issue expenses RNBITER - (10,338) - - - - - (10,338) - (10,338)
Capital reduction (note 27) Bl A (BFE27) (13,388) - - 13,388 - - - - - -
Share premium reduction (ote 27)  BUR & (B (FI7E27) - (221,600) - 221,600 - - - - - -
Redemption of convertible notes BERREE - - - - (7,904) - 7,744 (160) - (160)
Transfer (note 27) B (F27) - - - (242,166) - - 242,166 - - -
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F
+-A=t—-H 13,388 102,808 2,099 273969 - 5,639 (181,767) 216,136 (4,692) 211,444
Loss for the year REEBR - - - - - - (565000 (56,500) (559) (57,059
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEREE L
translation of foreign operation ERxE - - - - - 9 - 9 - 9
Total comprehensive expense TEERXAMYAE
for the year - - - - - 98 (56,500)  (56,402) (559)  (56,961)
Capital reduction (note 27) BB (B zE27) (10,710) - - 10,710 - - - - -
Share premium reduction (note 27) BRIk % (& (P55 27) - (102,808) - 102,808 - - - - -
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—&
+=A=+-8 2,678 = 2,099 387,487 = 5,737 (238,267) 159,734 (5,251) 154,483

Note: The capital reserve arising from the group reorganisation represents the difference

between the nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company in
exchange for the aggregate nominal values of the share capital of the subsidiaries.
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Cconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GeEREREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—E——F —E——5F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
5T BT T BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESEE
Loss before tax R A% AT S 18 (65,860) (198,344)
Adjustments for: BTYEIEAE
Depreciation of property, VI BB R ERETE
plant and equipment 927 749
Impairment loss on goodwill EE 2 REBE 29,893 147,309
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EERERE 19,986 -
Amortisation of intangible assets BiEELEE 16,927 17,296
Provision for losses on litigation SREMIBR 2 i - 3,000
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEW AR 2 R E R 18 4,010 60
Reversal of impairment loss on FEW AR R R E R 1B E
trade receivables - (18)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — R B A Rz W - (50)
Finance costs 7% & A 9 264
Fair value gains of convertible notes BEEAFEFAERZZ
designated at fair value through AR ERE A FEYES
profit or loss - (347)
Unrealised (gains) losses of investments BIEBEREZAEE
held for trading (Uezs) Esta (17,265) 4,566
Dividend income from equity securities R A FE 5 2 LB U A (271) (240)
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE - BEMEREEE
plant and equipment 6 -
Gain on redemption of convertible notes & [@ Al AT Z i ~ Uk - (835)
Interest income MEMA (5,595) (723)
Operating cash flows before movements ~ &EE# BRIz EERHETE
in working capital (17,233) (27,313)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other JE U BR TR N b U I R
receivables (1Zh0) 53,574 (55,996)
Increase in investments held for trading HEBE ZIREEM (15,860) (735)
Decrease in trade and other payables JRE AT BR SR R EL A P S HUBDR (2,279) (634)
Cash from (used in) operations REXBES (BR)RE 18,202 (84,678)
Income taxes paid EFTSE (242) (902)
Income taxes refund Frigtissid 763 -
Interest paid ERFLE 9) (99)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING E# FEIfiELE (BA) 2 REFHE
ACTIVITIES 18,714 (85,679)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net cash outflow on acquisition of
subsidiaries

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from redemption of convertible
notes designated as at fair value through
profit or loss at maturity

Interest received

Dividend income received

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Gross proceeds on issue of shares under
rights issue

Gross proceeds on issue of shares under
share placing

Advance from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary

Repayment of obligations under a
finance lease

Share issue expenses

Consideration for redemption of
convertible notes

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTED
BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Note
B aE
REEH
WEHMBARBHZIRE FE 29

BEYE  BELRE
R EIEART BE B FE T E 42 A FERTA
BRI BRRERZ
AT 3R
E WS
E U ALE A

REZBREE (BR) 2
REFE

BMEEH
PR BT R AD 2 P13
IR

R EMmBEITRMN 2
PSR 485
—EM B R R
—RIFERAIR 2 B
BERNEHERE

D EITE R

BOAmERERE

BMEZTHR(BR)EELZ
REeFHE

RERREEE2BMFER

FNzRERREEE

SHERE 5 28 7 B/

FRZBRERRESEE
ERTERERAS
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2012
—E—_—F
HK$'000
B¥TT

(406)

5,046
271

4,911

(187)

23,438

84,655

19

108,112

2011
—F——%F
HK$'000
EEET I

(175,310)
(2,016)

16,500
723
240

(159,863)

333,126

27,269

5,091

(179)

(10,338)

(67,900)

287,069

41,527

43,041

87

84,655



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the section headed
“Corporate Information” in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants ("HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Financial Instruments: Disclosures
— Transfers of Financial Assets

Amendments to HKFRS 7

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
Statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSS") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSS

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(FRIC) - Int 20

Annual Improvements to HKFRSS
2009-2011 Cycle’

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities'

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures?

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance'

Investment Entities?

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial Statements'

Joint Arrangements'

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities’

Fair Value Measurement!

Employee Benefits'

Separate Financial Statements’

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Presentation of Items of other
Comprehensive Income*

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine'
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 32 OFFSETTING
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 7 DISCLOSURES
— OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning
of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and
“simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements
(such as collateral posting requirements) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement or
similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods within
those annual periods. The disclosures should also be provided
retrospectively for all comparative periods. However, the
amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with retrospective
application required.

The directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more
disclosures being made with regard to offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities in the future.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities” credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or l0ss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that based on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as at 31 December 2012, the adoption of
HKFRS 9 in the future will not affect the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial instruments.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS ON
CONSOLIDATION, JOINT ARRANGEMENTS,
ASSOCIATES AND DISCLOSURES

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.
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2.

44

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS ON
CONSOLIDATION, JOINT ARRANGEMENTS,
ASSOCIATES AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements. HK(SIC) - Int 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities will be withdrawn upon the effective date of
HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for
consolidation, that is, control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a
new definition of control that contains three elements: (a) power
over an investee; (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal
with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. HKFRS 11
deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control should be classified. HK(SIC) - Int 13 Jointly
Controlled Entities — Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers
will be withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under
HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations
or joint ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31, there
are three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities,
jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled operations. In
addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, whereas
jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for
using the equity method of accounting or proportionate
consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general,
the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive
than those in the current standards.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS ON
CONSOLIDATION, JOINT ARRANGEMENTS,
ASSOCIATES AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS
12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on the
application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating to
the transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with earlier application
permitted provided that all of these standards are applied at the
same time.

The directors anticipate that the application of these five
standards will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 January 2013. The
application of those five standards is not expected to have a
significant impact in the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 13 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in the
current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13
to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 13 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted. The directors
anticipate that the application of the new standard will result in
more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
Statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 PRESENTATION OF
ITEMS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income. Under the amendments to
HKAS 1, a ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed as
a 'statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income’.
In addition, the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option to
present items of other comprehensive income either before tax
or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when
the amendments are applied in future accounting periods.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the other new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations will have no material impact on the Financial
Information of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidation statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein.

3.

FTESTHER

RAVBRRIIBRBEREGTMAGRMZE
ARBHRE LR MARR o Lol AR BHRE
MBREERMES EMRANT EHRAD) EE
BREUEPIFTRE 2 BRREER -

BRRAHEFEZETHHREEI AWK
BRIVIBBELRAERE - sHEELER T
SRR AFA - BELAA—RDIRERZE
mE I HREZ A ESE -

EERHYBERIIMT -
mER%E

REMBRRBEANRR REZEG E R (AIH
BRE) ZMBHREK - EAREEERERR
BERIMBEREERRNEAERETERH
=i BIRRA R RIS H G4 -

ERAFREWRER L E ZME QR 2 W M5
XThEWBEREMEE R EERB M (nE
R ETAGAEEHEKER

VEE  SYNBAR M BHRRELAE
PAER S 2 @t R EA KB HE ALK 8 A BPT
RAEME =
AEBRARBRZAERS ~ &k - Wa KB
NERGEIRE TG -

"

B

b=lll

(=Nl Sl St SE)iS
ZHEmD I RIZT

AN EEPNE]

21 ZERERAT o« —FT— —FFf 47



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

48

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date; and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or l0ss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is
made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another Standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subseguent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units, (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—=Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

GOODWILL (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and title has passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)
o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;,

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Agency commission and service income from property agency is
recognised in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered, which is generally the time when a formal agreement
among the transacted parties is established.

Franchise income is recognised in accordance with the terms of
the relevant franchise agreement and when the Group’s
entitlement to payment has been established.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or 10ss.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASING (continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalised in accordance with the Group'’s policy on
borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of exchange reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax” as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or l0ss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS ACQUIRED IN A BUSINESS
COMBINATION

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS ACQUIRED IN A BUSINESS
COMBINATION (continuea)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are comprising of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or 10ss

The Group's financial assets at FVTPL represent those held for
trading.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including note receivable, trade and other receivables, and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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62

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 90
days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—=Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets except for trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments

No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,

sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—=Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or l0ss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period or
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER THAN GOODWILL
(SEE THE ACCOUNTING POLICY IN RESPECT OF
GOODWILL ABOVE)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment l0ss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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68

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets are impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill and intangible assets have
been allocated. The recoverable amount is the higher of the
value-in-use and fair value less costs to sell of the cash-
generated unit. The value-in-use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected resulting in the recoverable amount to
drop below the carrying amount, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of goodwill
and intangible assets are HK$28,000,000 and HK$34,055,000 (net
of accumulated impairment loss of goodwill and intangible
assets of HK$522,504,000 and HK$19,986,000 respectively) (2011:
carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets are
HK$57,944,000 and HK$70,791,000, net of accumulated
impairment loss of goodwill and intangible assets of
HK$491,636,000 and HK$Nil respectively).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE
RECEIVABLE

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of trade
receivable is HK$34,253,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of HK$4,697,000) (2011: carrying amount of HK$39,090,000, net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$935,000).

PROVISION FOR LOSSES ON LITIGATION

The directors of the Company monitors any litigation against the
Group closely. Provision for losses on litigation is made based on
management assessment with reference to legal advices on the
possible outcome and potential liability to the Group. As at 31
December 2012, the carrying amount of provision for losses on
litigation is HK$86,500,000 (2011: HK$86,500,000). Details are set
out in note 34.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, and various
reserves.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associates with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt or reduction in capital.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6A. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

EXEBEE#)

ARRIBEFEHEHEARE - (ERUEMT
tEz—8D EFEREAKAREEARER|
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e
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6A. ERT AEHRI

2012 2011
—E——F —FE——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Financial assets BBEE
Loans and receivables (including B 5 fE U HE
cash and cash equivalents) (BREESRESZEEER) 154,784 176,369
Financial assets at fair value through & A F{EzT ABRm 2 B EE
profit or loss
— Held for trading —BEEE 76,715 52,177
231,499 228,546
Financial liabilities BRAasE
Amortised cost B HR AR 45,071 42,202
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include note
receivable, trade and other receivables, investments held
for trading, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables and obligations under a finance lease. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk) credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong and in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in Hong Kong dollars, the
functional currency of relevant group entities.

The Group is mainly exposed to the RMB, GBP and USD,
arising from foreign currency trade and other receivables,
listed bonds classified as held for trading, bank balances
and cash, and trade and other payables.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EWMITAR®
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6B. IR EEREREE @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEE (&)
Currency risk (Continued) SMNEE B ()
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency REBNRZHRAHUINES|(FE 2 §EE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at ELEEaEERENT -

the end of reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities Assets
=N BE
2012 2011 2012 2011
=E2-—-F —"T——F Z=F-=F —=T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BETIT BT T BETT

RMB AR (3,508) (404) 11,588 731
usb ETT (99) (99) 52,392 34,689
GBP HeE - - 5,277 8,442
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A MR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analyses for currency risk

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5%
(2011: 5%) increase and decrease in the functional
currency of each group entity against the above foreign
currencies. 5% (2011: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
other than the items denominated in USD as the directors
consider that the Group’s exposure to USD is insignificant
on the ground that HKD is pegged to USD, and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% (2011: 5%) change in
foreign currency rate. A positive number below indicates a
decrease in losses where the above foreign currencies
strengthen 5% (2011: 5%) against the functional currency
of each group entity. For a 5% (2011: 5%) weakening of the
above foreign currencies against the functional currency
of each group entity, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the losses and the balance below would be
opposite.

6. TMIT A

B

HREREEEERBEE®)

G E R ()

SMNEE iz (48)

TERFAVWNAEEGRESEEER RS
WA bt %METLﬂ&TM%M_Y
——F %) B 5% (ZFE——F

5%) Jh[a £ BEIE A B BLIMNE R ER
HMERRAIHRE  RREEE
SNEERAIGEHIR v S B EBMIEL 2
ST ARBEEE TN EFERA
AEBBBAETZREBRTA - B
EDITEBFBAETUINEEINE 2 K
BEINEEBIEE - WRFRAINERE
L% (ZF——1F :5%) 2 BB EITH
HRE - TRPEHRTE LINENR
EEBERB N EBEABE (=

——F 5%)REBZE D o Wi
AR EEER I EBRES (=
T——F:5%) BlelBEBEEKES
1B 2 BRAWR - T2 AR
ERBR -
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A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Sensitivity analyses for currency risk (Continued)

£RTH %)

6B. I EREEEEREE &)

G E g ()

SMNE Rz (48)

2012 2011
—E——F —_F—
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Loss for the year REEEE 557 366
Interest rate risk T %= 2 b

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
primarily relate to note receivable and obligations under a
finance lease, as set out in notes 18 and 25.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances because these
balances carry interest at prevailing rates and they are of
short maturity.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial

liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Regarding the cash flow interest rate risk, the sensitivity
analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments
at the end of the reporting period. For variable-rate bank
deposits, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
the relevant asset outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis
points (2011: 10 basis points) increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group's loss for
the year ended 31 December 2012 would decrease/
increase by HK$78,000 (2011: HK$65,000).

Equity and other price risk on investments held for trading

The Group is exposed to equity and other price risk
through its investments held for trading. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The Group’s equity and
other price risks are mainly concentrated on listed equity
and bonds quoted in the open markets and the
investments in wine future quoted by a well-known wine
and spirit merchant.

6. TMIT A

B

HREREEEERBEE®)

G E R ()
FE R ()
BURE DT

RREREMNEARME - TXHZE
DMTIRBERBMEMRAEZ 2 IF0TE
I,E:ﬂfﬂ 2 MEE © BLFBRITHER

s OMDEBRRBEPRZEBE
ETHERBEFEANDFEMIESL - 18
M D 10EER (= F ——4 : 501d
AR RKREBEMTEMERAREHE 2

R ARG, R 10EES - MTAE
BRI AEEHE T —=
F+ZAZT+—ALEEEZEIEGE
R T78,000 L (ZE——F 8
% 65,000 7T) °

FRIEREBEZREZRA KA MERKER

AEBBEFIEFEECIRETYRAR
HmERRR BEEEAHZFEET
FERRzEEEEEGIRR - RNEHEZ
BRAREMERRABREEEFRED £
BRARRARTISMECES - LR H
MBBEREBERERE -

21 ZEREPRAT ¢ —FT— _FER 75



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=Z

6.

76

——F A=+ HILER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Equity and other price risk on investments held for trading
(Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity and other price risks of
investments held for trading at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity investments had been
5% (2011: 5%) higher/lower, loss for the year ended 31
December 2012 would decrease/increase by HK$678,000
(2011: decrease/increase by HK$1,122,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of equity securities held by the
Group was based on the quoted prices of the respective
securities in active markets for identical assets.

If the prices of the respective bonds had been 5% (2011:
5%) higher/lower, loss for the year ended 31 December
2012 would decrease/increase by HK$2,422,000 (2011:
HK$704,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of
bonds.

If the underlying value of wine of the respective
investments in wine future had been 5% (2011: 5%) higher/
lower, loss for the year ended 31 December 2012 would
decrease/increase by HK$103,000 (2011: decrease/
increase by HK$352,000) as a result of the changes in
investments in wine future.

The Group’s sensitivity to equity and other price risks has
increased during the year mainly due to the increase in
investments held for trading. In the management’s opinion,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
equity price risk as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial Institutions with
good reputations.

6. ERIAM®

Ji

6B. IEREEEEREE &)

=EmEE

RZB——F+-A=+—H Kx&H
Gz &sEERR(ARXZHFER
BITEME A EHAREMBER) K
BEAMBIMAERMI 2 B A #RY
BEEZRHEE -

REBEERBREERE AEEER
BEZk—EGKEREEEEERE &
EHERAEMERER - ARARKRR
EITBNA MBI BIRIE RS o e oh - AKE
PR B R A & M8 5l (578 2 7] 4e Bl 3%
B URRMEERE Z REIEH RS
EREE - St ARAREER /ALK
Bz EERBEARRFE -

MRETREAERINRTRS K
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6.

78

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit quality of the listed bonds as set out in note 22,
determined by external credit-ratings assigned by Moody's
and analysed by percentages of the fair value of the debt
instruments in each grade of credit-ratings over the total
fair value of the listed bonds at the end of the reporting
period, is as follows:

6.

ﬁ%ﬁl I=NE-)

JH}-

B. iEREEEEREE &)

=R (E)

fFE22 FrEinem 2 SNEME BRI AR EE
MEMBERZEEERRRBERRS
EEERFRz2ERZATEE LHE
FRANFHEZBALITMT

2012 2011

-8 -z =

% %

A1 4.1% -
Ba1l 4.8% -
Ba2 4.4% 32.8%
Ba3 26.3% 32.1%
B1 60.4% 35.1%
100.0% 100.0%

The Group does not have significant concentration of
credit risk on investment in listed bonds as counterparties
are diversified.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on its note
receivable as the entire amount of the note receivable is
issued by an independent third party. The management of
the Group considers that the credit risk on investments in
this note receivable is limited as it was issued by a
company which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at
the end of reporting period.

EQMIA\?

HREREEEERBEE®)

B E L mE

REBRBESRRIE  AEBEER
R@FRehReSEREEERRE
BZKY UABERAEEEERHTE
ERBRECRERB 2 TE -

TREFIA K ERIE 15 E B & Rz
BREZHTAAZIMA - BLIEITER
BREMS @ TRILERAEER A6
WEREHERZ KRR ZHBAE
AUBBRRESREFRMMA - TREEF
BEREezRERE - MANERIZHH
o RIRBARSRBIRBEMRZF =X
& -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HEZE=—FT——F+-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

E@MITARE

6B. EREEBERBE#)

Liquidity risk (Continued) FEELEE ()
Liquidity risk tables MEBE 2R R
2012 —g——xF
Non-derivative financial ~ JefT4BisE®E
liabilities
Trade and other payables JE S BR R R E At
FEATFRIE
Obligation under a finance RMEHEEEE
lease
Weighted
average  Ondemand Total Carrying
interest  or less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 undiscounted amount at
rate 1 month months to 1year years  cashflows  31/12/2011
W=E——F
mE BEEKEER AEERE A=A
THRE  gon-ER —Z2=f@R =EAE-F& —E£EIfF MELE ZEHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
2011 —T——F
Non-derivative financial ~ JefT4BiisEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables FESTBR SR M EoAt
FERT IR - 42,202 - - - 42,202 42,202
Obligation under a finance BMEBEEART
lease 18 16 33 148 114 31 300
0218 3 148 14 b 02513 12,502
|




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—=Z

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6C.

6D.

FAIR VALUE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded in active
liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices and ask prices respectively.

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable current
market transactions as input. For option based derivative,
the fair value is estimated using option pricing model.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS RECOGNISED
IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation technigues that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

A MR AR

——FtZAS IR

6. EWMITR®)

6C.

6D.
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6.

82

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6D.

6. EMIA#)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS RECOGNISED

IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

As at 31 December 2012

IEE9--AC )

R-E——-—F+=-HA=+—H

6D. RE A B BRREBRREZ AT

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—;& ==Yt 11} E=R a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BET T BT T
Financial assets BEEE
Fair value through profit 1%\ F(EFI A8z
or loss
— Investments held for —FHEEEZRE
trading 76,715 - - 76,715
As at 31 December 2011 RZ—ZE——F+=-A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—H o<t 14 FZ =1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BEET T BEET T BT
Financial assets BgEE
Fair value through profit BEAFEFAER
or loss
— Investments held for —BEEEZIRE
trading 52,177 - - 52,177
There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 in the RAFERBEFE F—H F_H

current and prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

7. W&

AEE 2 RERWSESFMT

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Property agency commission and MNEBZMEREMS RARBEKRA
service income in Hong Kong 94,730 51,263

Property agency commission and RARBEzMERERS X

service income in the PRC BR AU A 9,857 9,436
Franchise income Frar e &R A 5,996 6,489
Sales of goods HEE M 23,902 196,111
Leasing management income AEEEWRA 2,128 1,266
136,613 264,565

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by operating and reportable segments, based on information
provided to the chief operating decision maker (“CODM")
representing the executive directors of the Company, for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance on types of services provided and goods sold. This

8. ZHER

EPTIR RS A E R m

R EE 2 BAE -

is also the basis upon which the Group is arranged and

organised.

The Group's operations are currently organised into four

AR B 7 5T 2 4R A T il

AT RAREZ et MEARKE R 28D
mMEID 20 MO IRESDEER KT
7 BRI A £
BRERRE((TERERKE] BART]
ZHITER)RBFZERET - WA AEE

KR 25D

operating and reportable segments as follows:

Property agency —  Provision of property agency and
in Hong Kong related services, and franchise
services in Hong Kong
Property agency —  Provision of property agency and
in the PRC related services, and leasing
management services in the PRC
Toy products trading ~ —  Trading of toy, gift and premium
products
Securities tradingand ~ —  Securities trading and investments
investments

BB AT

BREMERE — REBRHMERER
HARBARTS - DA RRERF
REERE —  RPERHEVERER
MRS - WREE
B IR
NAEREE — DA BRkGEREER
BHREBERRE — EFEERERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. DEBER(
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results REFIRKE R 2R LEID 2 WF L ELE
by operating and reportable segments: DHTEAT
Property agency
NERE
Securities trading
Hong Kong PRC Toy products trading and investments Consolidated
i E GEEREE BEEELRE Er
2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011
~%--f %% - cF -T--% 2@ -—B-F - -F-—F% - -FT--%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR E%Tn | BTz AYTr  BETR  B%Trn | BETr BT BETR A% Tr
Segment revenue A
— External sales — e 100,726 57,752 11,985 10,702 23,902 196,111 - - 136,613 264,565
Segment (loss) profit P H(ER) &7 (6,340) (53792) (64,667)  (118,760) (1,490) (5,495) 12,880 9,089) (59,617)  (187,116)
Unallocated corporate income RARZEEMA 258 974
Unallocated corporate expenses AAEZOERY (6,492) (8,9398)
Provision for losses on litigation B EE - (3,000)
Finance costs HHER 9) (264)
Loss before tax BHRAIER (65,860) (198,344)
Other information (included in HiER (BHETA
measure of segment profit (10ss)) AEEF (EE))
Net gain (l0ss) on investments BEBEREWE
held for trading (BB)38 - - - - - - 7,166 (10,057) 7,166 (10,057)
Investment and other income #EREfYA
(expense) (%) 715 1,112 9 19 (30) 18 5,813 924 6,589 2073
Depreciation of property, plant N BERRE
and equipment ZIE 415 386 495 352 5 6 - - 915 744
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment REVER 4 - - - 9 _ - _ 6 B
Impairment loss on trade receivables  EEMEZ 7 REEE 97 60 3703 - 216 - - - 4,010 60
Reversal of impairment loss ERERZREEE
on trade receivables ZEE = (18) - - - - - - - (18)
Additions to non-current assets FRREERDEE
during the year 325 718 26 1,289 - 4 55 5 406 2016
Impairment oss on goodwill BEZRERE 10,000 54,000 19,893 93,309 - - - - 29,893 147,309
Impairment loss on intangible assets  &f A& 2 FiEEE = - 19,986 - - - - - 19,986 -
Amortisation of intangible assets BHEVEE - - 16,927 17,29 - - - - 16,927 17,29

84

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
(loss) profit represents the (loss) profit from each segment
without allocation of unallocated corporate income, unallocated
corporate expenses (which mainly include administrative
expenses) and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. oEER (%)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THEERAEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities BREERAE/oAE P2 AEBMEERERE
by operating and reportable segments: DT
Property agency
NERE
Securities trading
Hong Kong PRC Toy products trading and investments Unallocated Consolidated
BB TE DEAEREE REEELRE FAR g8
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

S8--F T4 ZB-f -T 5 " 2f T —F ZB-Sf “FF ZB-CF T -F B “TF
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOD  HKS000  HKSO00 - HKSO00  HCSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00
ABTn AT EBTn  ENT ENTR  ENTr BMTx  R%Tr BRTn ARTn EBTn ENTR

ASSETS &E
Segment assets PUEE 75739 70449 39804  998% 5989 23385 88372 56259 - - 209904 249988
Unallocated assets Kk ATEE - - - - - - - - 9617 19215 91617 119215
Consolidated total assets A BEMAE 301,521 369,203
LIABILITES a2
Segment liabilties ABEE 33,795  238% 1219 2005 1159 24799 1,650 - - - 59235 48749
Unallocated liabilities &2 EEE - - = - - - - - 87,803 89,010 87,803 89,010
Consolidated total GEakEeE

liabiities 147,038 157759
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and BEERASIIEIE LIS I DAL E R

allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating and reportable — Fﬁﬁﬁ&" LERERA2®RD I
segments other than certain other receivables and bank ETEMERRENETEHR IR 2K
balances and cash; and o R

— all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable — FAABIEREERLENAIZ2HRYEL
segments other than certain other payables, tax payable AETEMEMNFIE  BEHELRBEMR
and obligations under a finance lease. EETRRI -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

ENTITY-WIDE DISCLOSURES

Geographical information

The Group’s current operations are mainly located in the PRC

and Hong Kong.

86

Information about the Group's revenue from external customers
is presented based on the location of the operation. Information
about its non-current assets (excluding financial instruments) by
geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

Ej

2 WEH ()
EREEARE

A

HEEH

AEERKHNEHERUNFERES

AEBERBINDEF 2 WS EFHREGE 2
5l e MEBEMEMEI D ZERBEE (TR

ERMTHE)FBEMOT :

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

R ENBES 2 FERBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
=g-=f - —F =F-=fF - —F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BMTT  BET  EETIR BETx
Hong Kong B 124,628 253,863 29,444 39,502
PRC ey 11,985 10,702 35,706 92,840
136,613 264,565 65,150 132,342

Note: Non-current assets excluded note receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE—FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE
DEBE R #)
FEEFEHR

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, revenue from
customers of the corresponding years contributing over 10% of

8.

BE

— =

- CER-F——H+-A=t+—H

EEE - RERFERASE TR 10% 21K

the total revenue of the Group are as follows: FrEEZINFNT
2012 2011
—E——F —FE——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Customer A' BEA 24,605 -
Customer B2 = B2 =3 28,622
Customer C2 B C? =3 27,307

1 Revenue from property agency in Hong Kong 1 BEMERERE

2 Revenue from toy products trading
3 The corresponding customer did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group

3

mAEMERNE
HEEPHRBMERBAAREBEEZ 10%

INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME 9A. IRER Bk A
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Interest on bank deposits SRITF A B 1,158 476
Interest on debt securities BEFESHFE 3,675 247
Imputed interest on note receivable BN EIEER 549 -
Other interest income HAnF S 4A 213 -
Dividends from equity securities fEARE A2 BB 271 240
Sundry income I A 981 1,197
6,847 2,160
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HEZE=—FT——F+-A=+—HIFE

9B. OTHER GAINS (LOSSES)

9B. HE bz (B518)

2011
—E——%F
HK$'000
BT
Net gain (loss) on investments BEEBIRE WS (B18) 5
held for trading (10,057)
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEUBRFN 2 R B E518 (60)
Gain on convertible notes designated as BERAFEFAEBZZ
at fair value through profit or loss ARBRERRE 347
Gain on redemption of convertible notes  BEE TR IR E 18 7 I as 835
(8,935)
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. I EH
2011
—E——%F
HK$'000
BT
Interest charges on: THEEZMEX M
Bank overdraft wholly repayable HRAFNEBEREEZ
within five years BITEX 1
Convertible notes BEES 245
Finance lease BEES 18

264




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT

11. FTIEHER

2012 2011
—E——F —FE——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
The (credit) charge comprises: (Ee) L HBE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFEH 427 183
Deferred tax — current year (Note) RIERRIE — AREE () (9,228) (4,324)
(8,801) (4,147)

Note: The deferred tax credit arises from the release of deferred tax liabilities
upon the amortisation of and impairment on intangible assets which arose
from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

MIEE - SRIEFIRE % Ty EIRIE T IR & 70 M 5H NOs (B U
MEBARMELZ BV EERERRMEST

EEFERIEMESTE 2 ([t FE B E T A
B 16.5%ETE o
BEFECERSRA([DEMSHED) R

EFEBEREED - A2 \F—A—8
1 BB A 2B E B 25% -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 11. FIEHE R @)
The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the 10ss REEZHEHKeHE 2HEKRER 2B
before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive ATEB AR
income as follows:
2012 2011
—E——F —F—
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Loss before tax BRI AT E 18 (65,860) (198,344)
Tax at the applicable rate of 16.5% RERAE16.5%
(2011: 16.5%) —E——F 165%)FTE2BIE (10,867) (32,727)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TTW&%&ZH%%;
for tax purpose 9,511 23,407
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARBRAZ RIFE
tax purpose (2,886) (591
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised FERRBER G E 1,592 6,503
Utilisation of tax loss previously A LRIARER 2 HIEBE
not recognised (576) (85)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries fEEM A AEERRKEE 2
operating in other jurisdictions MB AR TRME 2 #& (5,575) (648)
Income tax credit Fris i e (8,801) 4,147)

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 26.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE—ZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE
12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. XEEFIE
2012 2011
—E-CF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Loss for the year has been arrived at A F BRI (FPA) THEIE -
after charging (crediting):
Directors’ remuneration, including EExMe (BIERKEMNGFTEIH-T)
retirement benefits scheme (FF5E13)
contributions (note 13) 1,528 1,719
Other staff costs HAh 8 TR A 17,231 19,104
Other retirement benefits scheme HAnRRAEFIET SR
contributions 603 556
Total staff costs B TR AR 19,362 21,379
Auditor's remuneration ZEE BN < 1,120 1,030
Legal and professional fee on acquisition — UREEMIE AR 2 22 REBEEER
of subsidiaries = 858
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEERREBZITE
equipment 927 749
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEWBR TR 2 R B & 1B 4,010 60
Reversal of impairment loss on trade FEWEBR 2 R EEE 2 # 0
receivables = (18)
Loss on disposal of property, plant LEYE - BEMREZEE
and equipment 6 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEM B ARz WS - (50)
Operating lease payments for office MAEYE - P9t RE eI
premises, shops and photocopying KT EFTE
machines 7,772 8,596
Cost of inventories recognised as expense MR AR 2 FEK A 22,560 188,308
Commission expense on property agency  ¥EREBHEEFHZ 78,576 39,286
Interest income FE A (5,595) (723)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HEZE=—FT——F+-A=+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 13. EERTHARME
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors were as ENKENEESHESYBEET -
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE-—2——H+-A=+—HLEE

Fees ik
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF
Retirement benefits scheme  iR{k 4 &t &4t 51

contributions
Total emoluments ARGt
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE-_ZT——F+-A=+—HIEFE
Mr. Ha Mr. Chui Mr. Lui
Kee Choy, Mr. Cheng Chi'Yun, Siu Tsuen, Mr. Lam Mr.Ding  Ms. Cheung
Mr. Ng Eugene Yuk Wo Robert Richard ~ Kwok Cheong  Chung Keung Sze Man Total
REE  BEARE  PEAEE  ERCEE BARRE MEERE THRRE  RKEERT st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BEETT BT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
(Note a) (Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note 0)
(GET) (Mizta) (MizED) (GED) (W3Ed)
Fees e - - - 67 107 77 40 16 307
Salaries and other benefits %4 R E#ig7) 600 240 540 - - - - - 1,380
Retirement benefits scheme Rk 5 &I
contributions 12 8 12 - - - - - R
Total emoluments MewsE 612 248 552 67 107 77 40 16 1,719
Notes: B
(@  Resigned on 1 September 2011 @ —E-—FAA-RBHE
()  Resigned on 1 October 2011 b —E——F+A—BEE h
(c)  Appointed on 1 September 2011 (© —E——FNA—H E%E‘E
(d  Appointed on 11 November 2011 (d —T——F+—A+— EIZ%%E




13.

14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Mr. Ng is also the Chief Executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

For both 2012 and 2011, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. No directors
waived any emoluments for both 2012 and 2011.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
two (2011: two) were directors of the Company, whose
emoluments are included in note 13 above. The emoluments of
the remaining three individuals (2011: three) were as follows:

13.

14.

EERTHAZME @)

RAEETFRARBITHAE - XA E 2B
% B BEEEETHARE PTIR RS M S
ZHE -

“E- R T WMEFER - AEERE
AEMEEXNERAME  (ERMAREER
MAAGEE R BRI KIERBERBE - —F
—— R ZFE-—MEFEAREEENEEM

BEM<

AEEREBREHEALTBRERE(ZE——
F:MB)ARRES  EBSFBHN X
13 HBp =R (ZT——F: =ZH) AL
d ) 3 N

2012 2011

—E——F —FE——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Salaries and other benefits e M EMEF] 1,543 1,600
Retirement benefits scheme contributions Rk & 5214 2k 41 48
1,584 1,648

Their emoluments were within the following band:

mEMSBNRTIHE -

Number of employees

EEAE
2012 2011
—E—_—F —ET——F
HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 B T 2= 1,000,000 7T 3 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

15. DIVIDENDS
No dividends were paid, declared or proposed for the years

ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of both reporting periods.

16. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable to
the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

15.

16.

RE

REE-_Z——FR_F—F+-_A=+—
HIEFE  WARRMN - EREEZ RS ERR
B MEZMEREPBMERE - TARRK
RHEARRE. o

BRER

AR FEA NS SR EA R S8R
AT BB

2012 2011
—B—=fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Loss for the year attributable to owners of  FLAGFE SR ER K EEEE
the Company for the purposes of ZARRNBHRE NEEFEERE
basic and diluted loss per share (56,500) (189,511)

Number of ordinary share

TEREA

2012 2011

—g-5 -z =

‘000 ‘000

T TFi%

(restated)

(&%)
Weighted average number of ordinary BT ESREAREEER
shares for the purposes of basic and 2 AR R 8 (MR

diluted loss per share (Note) 267,759 153,324

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of
calculating basic and diluted loss per share for both years have been
retrospectively adjusted for the effects of the share consolidation in June
2012 and June 2011, and the bonus elements of rights issue completed in
July 2011 and January 2011 respectively (note 27).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥1% - BERRE
Furniture
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements  equipments vehicles Total
HE KA £B
MELE & RE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
COosT B
At 1 January 2011 RZZ——F—H—H 68 406 1,303 1,777
Additions b 1,068 498 450 2,016
Acquire on acquisition KU B A R IEA
of subsidiaries 632 465 - 1,097
Exchange realignment HNE SR 41 30 10 81
At 31 December 2011 —E——F+ZHA=1+—H 1,809 1,399 1,763 4,971
Additions i'a‘ i 233 173 - 406
Disposals HE - (35) 418) (453)
Exchange realignment NP FE B 11 9 4 24
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—=—H+=H=+—H 2,053 1,546 1,349 4,948
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—A—H 32 92 480 604
Provided for the year NEEEE 277 229 243 749
Exchange realignment HINE 3 B 4 6 1 1
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%F+-HA=+—H 313 327 724 1,364
Provided for the year NEEEE 353 310 264 927
Eliminated on disposals A & sl - (29) (418) (447)
Exchange realignment HNE B 4 3 2 9
At 31 December 2012 R-E-——HE+=-A=+-—H 670 611 572 1,853
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2012 R-B-——-—H+=-HA=+-—H 1,383 935 777 3,095
At 31 December 2011 RZF——%+ZA=1—H 1,496 1,072 1,039 3,607
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=Z

17.

18.

96

——F A=+ HILER

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The net book value of motor vehicles of HK$777,000 includes an
amount of HK$317,000 (31 December 2011: HK$429,000) in
respect of assets held under finance leases.

NOTE RECEIVABLE

The Group had investments held for trading of 5,357,000 shares
in ITC Properties Group Limited ("ITCP”) with a carrying value of
HK$10,875,000 as at 31 December 2011. On 20 January 2012,
ITCP made an offer to all the shareholders of ITCP to repurchase
its shares up to 260,000,000 shares at a repurchase price at
HK$2.6 per share settled by HK$0.6 cash and HK$2.0 loan notes
bearing coupon interest at 6.0% per annum with maturity on 9
February 2015 (the “Offer”).

The Group accepted the Offer and its entire investments in ITCP
shares repurchased by ITCP whereby cash of HK$3,214,000, an
unlisted note receivable with nominal value of HK$10,714,000
bearing coupon interest at 6.0% per annum with maturity on 9
February 2015 were received accordingly.

At initial recognition, fair value of the note receivable amounted
to HK$8,587,000, which was measured at the present value of
contractual future cash flows discounted at the effective interest
rate of 14.6%, taking into account the credit standing of the note
issuer and remaining time to maturity.

A gain of HK$926,000 was recognised in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 December 2012 in respect of the investments in
ITCP shares, which was included in net gain on investments held
for trading in other gains (losses).

As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of note receivable
was measured at amortised cost of HK$9,136,000. Effective
interest of HK$549,000 was included in investment and other
income during the year.
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Lt - BERRERB RAERERIAT

ORI
REmERE 20%
RE - RERR 20%
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ﬁiZ%E;‘%@;‘%ﬁﬁﬁ 000 L B HE IR B AL E
MERHAEZEEZREHEE317,000L(=F
——F+_A=+—8 : Bk 429,0007T) °

BREE

REEREEFHESEBR AR ([EBFEHE])
FFH5357,000RF[IEEE2HERND N
T——F+ A=+t HZEAEABE
10,875,000 e —E——_F—HA=-_+H &
HEREFHESBRRELWBELY - LB
OB % & MB HE 2.6 70 i 8] 5 % 260,000,000 A%
fEn - AR BB RN _E—HF A
NBEEHZEENEZFOEFMEZERE
BEB 20t TEH]) -

NEEBEMNREBY  FTEEEERD K
B EEERE - Wit WER & 5K
3214000 —H R —_E—RFE-_AHLBE
HiR B ENEREGFCOEFEEEABIE
10,714,000 7T 2 3£ LT R 4% -

U SR 15 N B #)56 HERR /3 7B 6 8,587,000 7T -
BIEMARRERELRERNE14.6% 1 EH
BE YACHEERBRHTANGATALE
RER TN -

HE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE #K
EEHEHDERMNEZEAERKRZEE
926,000t * B BIEEE MY (E51E) BiFE
EERERZFE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—=Z

19. GOODWILL 19. &8
Property agency
MERE
Toy
products
Hong Kong PRC trading Total
HEIA
B8 H EmEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB BETT BETT
COSsT 5N
At 1 January 2011 n—ZE——F—HF—H 429,960 - 4,201 434,161
Arising on acquisition of PR B A R ATEL
subsidiaries - 110,443 - 110,443
Exchange realignment NG F 22 - 4,976 - 4,976
At 31 December 2011 WZE——&+-A=+—H 429,960 115,419 4,201 549,580
Exchange realignment HNE T - 924 - 924
At 31 December 2012 R-B-——-—F+=-HF=+—H 429,960 116,343 4,201 550,504
IMPAIRMENT FE
At 1 January 2011 RZZ2——F—H—H 337,960 - 4,201 342,161
Impairment loss recognised REERRREBE
in the year 54,000 93,309 - 147,309
Exchange realignment HINE 3B - 2,166 - 2,166
At 31 December 2011 R-ZE—F+-A=1+—H 391,960 95,475 4,201 491,636
Impairment loss recognised ~ AEEHR 2 BIEERE
in the year 10,000 19,893 - 29,893
Exchange realignment HNE B - 975 - 975
At 31 December 2012 R-E-——HE+=-A=+-—H 401,960 116,343 4,201 522,504
NET CARRYING AMOUNT IREFE
At 31 December 2012 R-B——-H+=-HA=+-—H 28,000 - - 28,000
At 31 December 2011 RZE—%+-ZA=+—H 38,000 19,944 - 57,944
21 ZEREBRDT o —T— —FFf 97



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

19.

98

GOODWILL (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to the groups of cash generating units
("CGU") identified according to operating segment. The entire
net carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2012 has
been allocated to the groups of CGUs comprising the property
agency segment in Hong Kong (2011: Hong Kong and PRC). The
goodwill allocated to the toy products trading segment located
in Hong Kong has been fully impaired in 2007.

PROPERTY AGENCY IN HONG KONG

The recoverable amount of the CGUs of property agency
segment in Hong Kong was based on its value-in-use which is
higher than its fair value less cost to sell, both of which were
determined with reference to the valuation performed by an
independent professional qualified valuer not connected with
the Group. The value-in-use calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period, and at a discount rate
of 19.90% (2011: 16.47%). Cash flows beyond the five-year
period were extrapolated using a 3% (2011: 3%) growth rate in
considering the economic conditions of the market.

The estimated growth rates used are comparable to the growth
rate for the industry. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations related to the estimation of cash inflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimation is
based on the unit’'s past performance and management’s
expectations for market development including deteriorating
sentiment as a result of global economic turmoil and property-
cooling measures, such as introduction of the Buyer's Stamp
Duty and enhanced Special Stamp Duty in October 2012, which
cast doubt on the potential profitability in the property agency in
Hong Kong. The management of the Company therefore was of
the opinion that their previous expectation on the potential
profitability could not be met and as a result, goodwill was
impaired accordingly.

The carrying amount of the unit was determined to be higher
than its recoverable amount and an impairment loss of
HK$10,000,000 (2011: HK$54,000,000) was recognised. The
impairment loss was allocated fully to goodwill and is presented
on the face of consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

19. GOODWILL (continued)

PROPERTY AGENCY IN THE PRC

The recoverable amount of the CGUs of property agency in the
PRC was based on its value-in-use which is higher than its fair
value less cost to sell, both of which were determined with
reference to the valuation performed by an independent
professional qualified valuer not connected with the Group. The
value-in-use calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period, and at a discount rate of 20.7% (2011: 19.0%). Cash flows
beyond the five-year period were extrapolated using a 3.62%
(2011: 3.66%) growth rate in considering the economic
conditions of the market.

The estimated growth rates used are comparable to the growth
rate for the industry. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimation is
based on the unit’'s past performance and management’s
expectations for the PRC property market development including
continuously operated within a relatively slow real estate
industry environment due to project delays and softness in land
transaction. The unfavourable operating environment and
factors cast doubt on the potential profitability in the property
agency in the PRC. The management of the Company therefore
was of the opinion that their previous expectation as at 31
December 2011 on expected revenue growth and market
development of the property agency business in the PRC could
not be met and as a result, goodwill was fully impaired
accordingly.

The carrying amount of the unit was determined to be higher
than its recoverable amount and an impairment loss of
HK$39,879,000 (2011: HK$93,309,000) was recognised and
allocated to goodwill and intangible assets of HK$19,893,000 and
HK$19,986,000 (2011: HK$93,309,000 and HKS$Nil) respectively.

i

RAPEZERE

FEMEREZREGELSN 2 /] NESEIR
RATEREERKASNEREESET  ME
HLEBREE I RSB ERE BRI
BRVZHEETE - FRABEFEFZERRE
BEMMAEZ AFHBHREER207%(=ZF
——F 90%) CHBEBEXEFCBRERETRE
Al o ZEB TG 2B - BB TFR 2R
EMEA3.62% (=T ——14F : 3.66%) K1 &
EHH o

ERZEFHERFETERREAE - 5 HERE
REEzHEMEIZHERARSRE 2H (8
REEZHEREMNER)BM - ZEMFHRZ
BUZBERRAREEEHTEMENHER
ZTAHMETE  AHAHERAB TN
RHERBEBEFMETEERGE - THH
ERREREBARETEZYEREEE
BFEENREE - ARRIEIEER MR SHEE
EY - ——F T A=t —HYETEZY
EREXBERISZWRBRETSERZ
HI%E - YRS 2ERE

RENBEEZ FEESREATKREESRE Y2
TERBEBEE 39,879,000 L (ZE——%F -
75 1593,309,0007T) - AN RIMEAERERE
72 5 Br 78 1 19,893,000 7T K2 7 ¥ 19,986,000 7T

—EF——%F : #¥93,309,0007T AT T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BLEE
The contracted and uncontracted customer relationship has an DRI R ARz BEBER 2G5 rE A FH
estimated useful life of five years and is amortised on a straight- BAF - WARSEEE - TPAEFRHEA
line basis. The customer relationship is in relation to the property MERIBEEER -

agency business in the PRC.

HK$'000

BT
cosT TN
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—H—H -
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries RULEERT B A AR EE 84,674
Exchange realignment SN 5 2 3,815
At 31 December 2011 R-E—F+-_A=+—H 88,489
Exchange realignment HINEE S 2 709
At 31 December 2012 R-_ZB——+=-A=+—H 89,198
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT B RRE
At 1 January 2011 RNZZE——%—H—H -
Provided for the year NS B 17,296
Exchange realignment HINIE 2 402
At 31 December 2011 R-_E—F+-_A=+—H 17,698
Provided for the year RE FHHE 16,927
Impairment loss recognised in the year REERRREREE 19,986
Exchange realignment NG F B 532
At 31 December 2012 R-B-——-—F+=-H=+—H 55,143
CARRYING VALUE ARMEE
At 31 December 2012 R-E—=—F+=-B=+—H 34,055
At 31 December 2011 RZEBE—F+_A=+—H 70,791
Details of the impairment test on the recoverable amount of the EHESEBREECREMERERCESL
CGUs of property agency in the PRC, which the intangible assets BB A7 AU Bl SR BRI BRI 2 S E A TR 19 o

are allocated to, are set out in note 19.
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A MR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21. BWUIRF K H B IR

2012 2011

—E——F —FE——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BET I

Trade receivables JE U BR X 38,950 40,025
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RIREAE (4,697) (935)
34,253 39,090

Deposits paid EXziEe 3,483 2,960
Prepayments TEfTK 1,389 5,355
Other receivables H b fE W FR0E 3,283 2,624
Security paid EXNzRESR = 50,000
42,408 100,029

For toy products trading segment, the Group allows an average
credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days to its trade customers.
For property agency segment in Hong Kong, the Group allows an
average credit period of 60 to 90 days to property developers
whilst the individual customers are obliged to settle the amounts
upon completion of the relevant agreements and generally no
credit terms are granted. For franchise operation from property
agency segment in Hong Kong, the Group allows an average
credit period of 7 days to its franchisee. For property agency
segment in the PRC, the Group allows an average credit period
of 30 to 60 days to property developers.

AIMEAEREENHME ARELETESE
FRZEERFANTF="1ZENTH -B%EED
ERENBME - ARERTORBREZIE
EMFHRATEATR - MEARF AR
HEABR TKEBSESRE W RTEETE
B8 - BB MERE D MORIFLEMS
AEBEGETHRARKLER ZEERFIRE
A ENEREDEME - ARERTY
EURBEERTHOR=TENTH
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

21.

R ST Bl SRR I Lt B KU RR IR (42)

b

FE YRR (FORR RER M) RIS IR IRERA
2 ZREDTT

2012 2011
—E—_—F —F—

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Trade receivables FEUAR =X
0-30days 0x30H 2,913 15,816
31 - 60 days 31260H 2,474 9,143
61—-90 days 61290H 8,242 4,094
91 - 180 days 91HZE180H 12,605 5,332
Over 180 days 180 B 8,019 4,705
34,253 39,090

These receivables relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group. The management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit risk and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will assess and
understand the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
its credit limits. Credit limits attributed to each customer are
reviewed regularly. All of the accounts receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired have no default payment history.

As at 31 December 2012, included in the Group’s accounts
receivable balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$12,855,000 (2011: HK$13,247,000) which are past due as
at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE
FE IS BR R I EL b PE W R IE ()
B EH{B R B 2 FE R R AR iR

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21.

AGEING OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES WHICH
ARE PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

2012 2011
—E——F —FE——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Overdue by: g1
1-90 days 1290H 11,484 9,657
91 -180 days 91H=Z=180H 768 2,759
Over 180 days 180 B 603 831
12,855 13,247
MOVEMENTS IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR RIRBEEZE
DOUBTFUL DEBTS
2012 2011
—E——F —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1 January Rn—H—H 935 1,073
Impairment losses recognised A UK BR SRR R 2 R B S 18
on receivables 4,010 60
Amounts recovered during the year FRNBEWESEE = (18)
Amounts written back during the year FRRE (287) (180)
Exchange realignment SNE S 39 -
At 31 December ARt+-A=+—8 4,697 935

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
HK$4,697,000 (2011: HK$935,000). The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

R A EEERN R EREAR - EaREER
BB 46970000( ZF — — F 0 FE
935,0007T) © A E I Fh % F AT A IR

5 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HzE—Z—

22.

o=t AILER

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continved) ~ 21. FEUWBRR & H b B W18 (&)
MOVEMENTS IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR RRBESH 2
DOUBTFUL DEBTS (Continued)
Included in the Group's trade and other receivables is a security R-ZB——F  BETESEETIANEEANITE
of HK$50,000,000 which was paid to the High Court during 2011 R E 2 150,000,000 TTIRFE® © EFTA
for the stay of execution and enforcement of judgment. On 5 REB ZEWEZRNEMEIRZE R-2F
January 2012, the security of HK$50,000,000 was released and ——F—AAA8 afEhelzSRESE
refunded to the Company by the High Court, details of which are 50,000,000 L3 8 KRB ARNT) - BRAFFE
set out in note 34. HAMIFES4 -
INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 22. HIEEEZRE
Investments held for trading at the end of the reporting period NBEH RV FEEB 2 IRE BT
included:
2012 2011
—E-—-F —FE——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Listed securities: RS
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE L2 BRAESF
(Note a) (MiEta) 16,233 26,880
Listed bonds (Note b) EmES (EED) 58,005 16,855
Wine future (Note c) BEEEE (FisEc) 2,477 8,442
76,715 52,177

in active markets.

The bonds held by the Group are listed in

The fair value was based on the quoted prices of the respective securities

Hong Kong and overseas and

carried fixed interest rate ranging from 2.5% to 11.25% per annum. The

maturity dates of the listed bonds range

from 22 February 2013 to 17

January 2023 (2011: 14 November 2016 to 22 April 2017). Their fair values
are determined based on quoted market bid prices available in an active

market.

The fair value of wine future was determined based on market price

provided by a well-known wine and spirit merchant.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, no investments held for trading

have been pledged as security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—=Z

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits that are interest-bearing ranging from

0.01% to 2.3% (2011: 0.01% to 2.3%) and ha
of three months or less.

24.

ve original maturity

A MR AR

——FtZAS IR

23. lI\nﬁ?&Iﬁlﬁ

RITEBR MRS BRERAEEMFRE KRN F
001%ZE23% (ZF——F : 001%£2.3%) 2
MEFLEARIBERB=(EARIAR 2 FEHIR
T -

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. BEARMRR HMERRK
2012 2011
—E——F —F——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trade payables FETBR X 31,336 26,383
Other payables H e 0B 7,158 12,609

Amount due to a non-controlling JE A —FH Bﬁ%

shareholder of a subsidiary —{r e Hxﬁx%m 11,533 13,333
Provision for losses on litigation FEAE & 2 Bl 86,500 86,500
136,527 138,825

An aged analysis of trade payables for toy products trading

presented based on the invoice date at th
period is as follows:

e end of reporting

NAEMBE CEBNEFINBEPIREZERA
H25 2 RREBEDITIAT

2012 2011

—E——fF —T——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BET T
0-30 days 0F30H - 2,404
31-60days 3ME260H = 1,184
61—-90 days 61290H - 720
91 - 180 days 91£E180H - 574
= 4,882

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 to 120 REEMZEESHEFIANTE—BE-_+H-

days.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE=Z

24.

106

——F+-_A=t+—ALFE
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Commissions payable of HK$31,336,000 (31 December 2011:
HK$21,501,000) include mainly the commissions payable to
property consultants and cooperative estate agents, which are
due for payment only upon the receipt of corresponding agency
fees from customers.

Other payables mainly comprise of deposits received, receipts in
advance, accrued staff costs and other sundry creditors.

The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
is unsecured, non-interest bearing, non-trade nature and
repayable on demand. The non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary is a close family member of Mr. Ng (defined in note
13), a director of the Company.

At 31 December 2012, included in the Group's trade and other
payables was provision for losses on litigation of approximately
HK$86,500,000 (2011: HK$86,500,000) made in accordance with
the judgment, details of which are set out in note 34.

21 HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2012

24. FEATER

a'}\&ﬁﬂﬂﬂgﬁ'ﬁ)\

fﬂ;»

JE A& 78 831,336,000 0 (- T ——F+ =
B=+—H : ##¥21,501,00070) E B IEfE
NYHEERREEHERE2 A  REER
FZHEBAREERRFAEIN -

HibENRBEEEZREEWEG & - AU
H - ERE TR RE AR AR -
FES —FEI B 2 A

— (I IR A R RIA I  4E

o TEAE  EBESME RERRERM
RHER - ZMB AR ZIFERBRAARAE

EREEZAB(EERWEZ) -

RZZ——F+_A=+—8  RIEERED
Zﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%%%%mmmmhq
——1fF : #1#86,500,0007T) © Bt AKREH
ZJEHEE S B A ESTFRIE - BRART B AT
E34 °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

25. OBLIGATIONS UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 25.

It is the Group's policy to lease its motor vehicles under finance
lease. The average lease term is 32 months (2011: 32 months).
Interest rates underlying obligations under a finance lease are
fixed at contract date of 1.8% (2011: 1.8%) per annum. The
Group has an option to purchase the equipment for a nominal
amount at the end of the lease terms. No arrangements have
been entered into for rental payments.

MEMEEMR

REBZBRDIREREHERERE - F15
HBA=T-ZEA(ZFT——F: =+
A) mEREETABENEERNGHHHER
ERTFI8%(ZT——F :18%) - A5 H
AEERNHERARUAERERE - WEMLE
MRS EAZHE -

Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
BIEHEEMARK BREHEMNRZRE
2012 2011 2012 2011
=B—=-F ~—T——F ZB-=F —FT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BET T BT T

Amounts payable under RIZEVEHE R RIE
finance lease

Within one year —FR 115 197 113 187
Inmore thanoneyearand  #B@E—F - ETHRBEF
not more than five years - 114 - 113
115 311 113 300
Less: Future finance charges & : A& m & & A (2) (11) - -
Present value of lease HEETZRE
obligation 113 300 113 300
Less: Amount due for Rt Z@AN
settlement within BIEREE 2 A
12 months (shown (RIMERBER)
under current
liabilities) (113) (187)
Amount due for settlement R+ —1{& B & 2| HiEE
after 12 months A = 113

The Group's obligations under a finance lease are secured by
the lessors’ title to the leased assets.

AEEREREEEDALBEALEREESE
EZRAREEEM -

21 ERERAT « —=——&&F 107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

108

26.

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior year.

ELEBIHAE

ATRAFER FFECHRAZ T ERITEHREA
BEREEZY -

Fair value

adjustments

AT ERAE

HK$'000

BT

At 1 January 2011 RZZE——F—H—H -
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries RUEE N B A RIS ATE A 21,169
Credit to profit or loss T AEE=E (4,324)
Exchange realignment SN 5 853
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+_A=+—H 17,698
Credit to profit or l0ss T AEE (9,228)
Exchange realignment SNEE 2 44
At 31 December 2012 R-ZB-——-—%+=-H=+—H 8,514

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$98,495,000 (2011: HK$92,337,000) available for
offset against future profits that may be carried forward
indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of future

profit streams.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
Number Share
of shares capital
A& E [N
‘000 HK$'000
Fhx BT T
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares LAk
At 31 December 2011 and RZE——F+ZA=+—HEK
31 December 2012, —E-ZfF+=R=+—-8"
at HK$0.01 each SREEEY¥0.01T 50,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
Ordinary shares il
At 1 January 2011 at HK$0.01 each RZZE——F—H—8"
BREEEE0.01T 112,696 1,127
Issue of shares under rights issues E AR m TG (FiFta)
(Note a) 2,316,997 23,170
Issue of shares upon placing of shares R & B9 2217 I (Bt sED)
(Note b) 247,900 2,479
Share consolidation of every 10 ordinary BTREREESE00 T
shares of par value HK$0.01 each into TR EHA—REREE
1 consolidated share of par value B0 2 ARG &
HK$0.10 each and reduction of par BRICGHRINEE
value of each consolidated share HRABK010TTEIRZE A 0.017T
from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 (Note c) (Bf5EC) (1,338,796) (13,388)
At 31 December 2011 R_EBE——F+_A=+—H 1,338,797 13,388
Share consolidation of every 5 ordinary FRARSEEESK001TTZ
shares of par value HK$0.01 each into LR A A IREREE
1 consolidated share of par value BH0.05 T2 AR ¢
HK$0.05 each; and reduction par value FlEAE IO EERBE0.057T
of each consolidated share from BB ZE A% 0.01 7T (H5Ed)
HK$0.05 to HK$0.01 (Note d) (1,071,038) (10,710)
At 31 December 2012 N-—ZE——E+-B=+—H 267,759 2,678
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27.

110

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

a. (i) An ordinary resolution was passed in a special general meeting of
the Company on 6 December 2010, which approved a rights issue
on the basis of ten rights shares for every one share held at a
subscription price of HK$0.19 per rights share. The rights issue
became unconditional on 10 January 2011 and 1,126,955,740 shares
were issued and allotted on 13 January 2011. The gross proceeds
from rights issue before share issue expenses, was approximately
HK$214,122,000.

(i) An ordinary resolution was passed in a special general meeting of
the Company on 21 June 2011, which approved a rights issue on the
basis of eight rights shares for every one share held at a
subscription price of HK$0.01 per rights share. The rights issue
became unconditional on 20 July 2011 and 1,190,041,048 shares
were issued and allotted on 22 July 2011. The gross proceeds from
rights issue before share issue expenses, was approximately
HK$119,004,000.

b. Pursuant to a placing agreement date 25 March 2011, 247,900,000 shares
were allotted and issued at a placing price of HK$0.11 per share on 4 April
2011.

C. Pursuant to a special resolution passed in a special general meeting of the
Company, the Company effected a capital reorganisation (the “Capital
Reorganisation 2011") on 22 June 2011:

(i) every ten issued existing shares of par value HK$0.01 each be
consolidated into one issued consolidated share of par value
HK$0.10 each;

(i) the issued share capital of the Company be reduced by cancelling
HK$0.09 of the paid up capital on each issued consolidated shares
such that the nominal value of each issued consolidated share be
reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01;

(ifi) the entire amount standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company be cancelled; and

(iv) the credit arising from the capital reduction and the share premium
cancellation be credited to the contributed surplus account of the
Company and the directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorised to apply the amount in the contributed surplus account
of the Company to set off the accumulated loss of the Company in
the manner permitted by the laws of Bermuda and the bye-laws of
the Company without further authorisation from the shareholders of
the Company.

Details of the Capital Reorganisation 2011 were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 30 May 2011.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

d. Pursuant to a special resolution passed in a special general meeting of the
Company, the Company effected a capital reorganisation (the “Capital
Reorganisation 2012") on 18 June 2012:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

every five issued existing shares of par value HK$0.01 each were
consolidated into one issued consolidated share of par value
HK$0.05 each;

the issued share capital was reduced by cancelling of HK$0.04 of
the paid-up capital on each issued consolidated share such that the
nominal value of each issued consolidated shares be reduced from
HK$0.05 to HK$0.01;

the entire amount standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company was cancelled;

the credits arising from the capital reduction and the share premium
cancellation were transferred to the contributed surplus account of
the Company; and

the directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to apply
the amount in the contributed surplus account of the Company to
set off the accumulated loss of the Company in the manner
permitted by the laws of Bermuda and the bye-laws.

Details of the Capital Reorganisation 2012 were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 23 May 2012.

27. A (&)

MiaE - (47

d. RERARABRRFIAGRBIFHRER A
RARZE-—F AT NRETRAEE(=F
——FRABAD -

(0]

(i)

(i)

—=
—=

SERGRAEAL00IT2ERTRAR
AG A REBAB00S T ERTAMN
Bt

HIHeRERTAMHRMO P 2R BRAE
%0040 HIREBITRA - EREHET
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JC
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% RS ZAS BBk % S 4 AR 40 i 18 P AR 2 M R
ARRB BEHBHER

BEARDEFTRAFEERRARTZA
BRI AR Z IR ERARAEHAR
R Z SRR AR T Z RETER ©

—ERAERAZFBERARABEMA-F

—ZFRAZT=AZBAA -

21 ZERERAT o« —FT— —FFf

111



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

28. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

28. FEAALQRMBRREKRZER

Information about the statement of financial position of the BRAARRDNTARBREEREBRRNE ZERN
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: T
2012 2011
—E-=F —T——%
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FET FET
TOTAL ASSETS EEHRE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIEE 1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BT B A B A 225,037 235,824
Other receivables H b B R 232 50,312
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNIR S 224 800
225,494 286,937
TOTAL LIABILITIES EEA%E
Other payables H b e 50 87,688 87,774
87,688 87,774
NET ASSETS BEEFE 137,806 199,163
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR
Share capital (note 27) B& 7S (B 5E 27) 2,678 13,388
Reserves s (a) 135,128 185,775
137,806 199,163
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28. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZ=
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28. EEAARQTMBRRKRZER (&)

(Continued)
Notes: W&
(@  Reserves @ &
Convertible
Share Contributed  notes equity Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
RR RS
BHRE BERRH EEEE Rt &8 FEYG)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T BETFT BT T
(Note b)
(Hi7ED)
At 1January 2011 WoZ——F—A—H - 331,095 7,904 (291,277) 47,722
Loss for the year and total ~ A4 E 18 R A&
comprehensive expense 2 ER X425
for the year - - - (199,583) (199,583)
Issue of shares under [ A% T 25 1 T AR 1D
rights issue 309,956 - - - 309,956
Issue of shares upon E & BL & A TRR D
placing of shares 24,790 - - - 24,790
Share issue expenses RHEITER (10,338) - - - (10,338)
Capital reduction Bl R A - 13,388 - - 13,388
Share premium reduction Bl Js A% (7% (B B (221,600) 221,600 - - -
Redemption of convertible B [E] AT AR =%
notes - - (7,904) 7,744 (160)
Transfer o - (242,166) - 242,166 -
At 31 December 2011 MRZTE——4F
+=A=+—H 102,808 323,917 - (240,950) 185,775

Loss for the year and total ~ A 4F E 518 AR &
comprehensive expense 2 E 4258
for the year

Capital reduction B A

Share premium reduction  ElI3F %17 % (B R

At 31 December 2012 R
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28.

29.
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b) Contributed surplus

The contribution surplus represented reduction in issued share capital
pursuant to a capital restructuring in 2004, Capital Reorganisation in 2011
and Capital Reorganisation in 2012. Under the Company Law of Bermuda,
the contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 14 September 2010, the Company through its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary, Asset Expert Limited, (the “"Purchaser”),
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Prolific Wise
Limited (the “Vendor”) for the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Vigour Well Limited (“Vigour Well”) and
shareholder’s loan due to the Vendor at cash consideration of
HK$180,000,000. Vigour Well is engaged in provision of property
agency services and related consultancy services to real estate
developers on their residential, retail and commercial properties
projects in the PRC.

The conditions for the acquisition were fulfilled or waived and
the transaction was completed on 18 January 2011 on which the
date control of the companies acquired was transferred to the
Group.
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29. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Based on the sale and purchase agreement, the total
consideration of HK$180,000,000 shall be adjusted downward on
a dollar for dollar basis if any liabilities as at the date of
completion exceeds HK$1,000,000 and the consideration shall
be reduced by an amount equivalent to such excess. Upon
completion, each of the liabilities did not exceed HK$1,000,000
except the shareholder’s loan amounted to approximately
HK$4,954,000, and therefore the liabilities in excess of
HK$1,000,000 amounted to HK$3,954,000. Accordingly, the total
consideration, which included the assignment of shareholder’s
loan to the Group of HK$4,954,000, was adjusted downward to

29.

HK$176,046,000.

The net assets acquired in the transactions and goodwill arising

L B BfY BB X B ()

RIEEEHH - WEWAENRTK B BES
# 1,000,000 7T + 42 {878 ¥ 180,000,000 7T 78
BREBMEETH  MRENBHRBESAREBH
FBHED D 2 3EE - RERIE - BRIREERAE
#4,954,000L5 0 S EE BT EB LA
1,000,0007T + B it - #8 7% 8 1,000,000 7T 2
B & RBE3,954,0007T © MUt - BRE (B
EETAEE 2 RWREFE 4,954,0007T) 2
TAZEE 176,046,000 7T °

77

RRSFPRE 2 EEFENRBEE ZHEN

on the acquisition, are as follows: T
Fair value
AFE
HK$'000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENERE 1,099
Intangible assets mEEE 84,674
Trade and other receivables U AR 3 e EL At PR MR IR 980
Bank balances and cash WITHEBRIRS 736
Trade and other payables P& BR 3R N E A JE - R IE (701)
Tax payable FERTER IR (16)
Amount due to shareholder FEAT IR R B IR (4,954)
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIERE (21,169)
60,649
Assignment of shareholder’s loan EREREE ZRRENR
to the Group 4,954
Goodwill [EES 110,443
Total consideration BRE 176,046
Consideration satisfied by: REUATIFALAT
Cash paid BENEE 176,046
Net cash out flow arising on acquisition: WEERSEA 2 IR e F5E
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiE e MIRESE 736
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (176,046)
(175,310)
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29.

116

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The fair value and gross contractual amounts of trade and other
receivables at the date of acquisition amounted to HK$980,000.
No expectation of uncollected contractual cash flows at the date
of acquisition date.

The goodwill recognised was primarily due to the expected
revenue growth and market development that is attributable to
increased market penetration from future customers.

The intangible assets comprise of contracted and uncontracted
customer relationship of which its fair value was calculated
based on cash flow projection discounted at discount rates of
18.50% for the contracted customer relationship and 19.0% for
the uncontracted customer relationship.

The subsidiaries acquired contributed HK$10,702,000 and
HK$118,760,000 to the Group's revenue and loss for the year
ended 31 December 2011, respectively, between the date of
acquisition and 31 December 2011.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$858,000 have been
excluded from the consideration transferred and have been
recognised as an expense in the year ended 31 December 2011,
within the administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2011, the
revenue and the loss of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 would have been HK$264,759,000 and
HK$194,423,000 respectively. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2011, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.
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30. OPERATING LEASES

31.

THE GROUP AS LESSEE

The Group made minimum lease payments paid under operating
leases in respect of office premises, shops and photocopying
machines of approximately HK$7,772,000 (2011: HK$8,596,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

30.

KeEHe
REBAEBEA

AEERRAENE - A RERREEE
MEZ &ERONRBLEE7,772,0007T (=
T——4F : jB%8,596,0007T) °

REEHR  AEER AT HE  KEHER
51 ERRE B BR RE A 2 R R S AR AH A9~ SRR 1N
T

2012 2011

—E--F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Within one year —&FR 6,121 6,115
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF (BEERME) 3,009 4,661
9,130 10,776

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises, shops and photocopying
machines. Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease
terms of one to five years (31 December 2011: one to five years).

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

Pursuant to the resolution passed at a special general meeting
held on 17 September 2004, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the “Scheme”). The Company operates the
Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. The eligible participants of the Scheme
include the Company's or its subsidiaries’ executive directors,
non-executive directors and employees, and any business
consultants, agents, financial or legal advisers and any other
persons who the board of director consider, at its sole
discretion, will contribute or have contributed to the Group.

31.

REBOINTIEREEARETRAIEDE B
MEEERZ ENES - KR HER -2
TFEEBATREESH(—FT——F+_-A
=+—B8:—Z"F)-

BRRETE

RERXR_FZTUFNATERBITZRRER
RELRBZRRSR - ARBRMA—BHBR
Rt &l ([5%aT81)) - NRBIRILAATE] - AR
B B HARELERRBERM A ERS
HE - ZAtBZAERZEEREAQRRAE
MERRZHMITES FFRTEEREER &
ERRGRER - REA - BBSORRER R E
MEEFE2RNEAREAEE/EEREC
FHBERZ AL -
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31.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)

The grant of share options should be accepted within 30 days
from the date of the grant, at a consideration of HK$1, being
payable by the grantee upon the acceptance of grant. The
options may be exercised at any time within the period
commencing from the date of grant of the options and expiring
on the date determined by the directors, but in any event such
exercise period shall not exceed a period of ten years
commencing on the date the relevant option is deemed to be
granted.

The exercise price of the share options was determinable by the
directors, but was not able to be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company'’s share.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the maximum number of shares in the
Company in respect of which options may be granted when
aggregated with any other share option scheme of the Company
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of adoption of the Scheme. Subject to
the issue of a circular and the approval of the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to
time, the board may refresh the limit at any time to 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of approval by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
Notwithstanding the foregoings, the shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)

No option may be granted to any person if the total number of
shares of the Company already issued and issuable to him under
all the options granted to him in any 12 month period up to and
including the date of grant exceeding 1% of total number of
shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of
options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the issue of
a circular by the Company and the approval of the shareholders
in general meeting. Such participant and his associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting and/or other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to
time. Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s share capital or with a value in excess of
HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, there were no outstanding
share options and there were no share options granted for the
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributes the lower of HK$1,000
or 5% (increased to HK$1,250 effective on 1 June 2012) of
relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute 20% of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make
the specified contributions.
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33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(A) RELATED PARTY BALANCE

Detail of the Group’s outstanding balance with a related
party is set out in note 24.

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

The remuneration of directors which are considered as
key management personnel of the Group during the year

33.

BEALTIHE
(A) EEERE AL 28R

REBEBEA T 2 RERGRE M
u124°

(B) TEEBABZHE

FRAGRALEBEEREABZESH W
T

is as follows:
2012 2011
—E——fF —ZT——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Short-term benefits o HARE A 1,500 1,687
Post-employment benefits RIKEF 28 32
1,528 1,719

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

34. LITIGATION

On 8 October 2004, a writ of summons was filed by a former
director of the Company (the “Plaintiff”) against the Company in
respect of the loans due from two former subsidiaries of the
Company namely, Rockapetta Industrial Company Limited and
Grand Extend Investment Limited, for a sum of approximately
HK$44,500,000 (the “Principal Sum”) together with accrued
interests thereof (the “Action”).

On 2 March 2011, judgement was handed down by the Court of
First Instance of the High Court and was awarded in favour of
the Plaintiff (the “Judgment”). It was adjudged that the Company
shall pay the Plaintiff the sum of HK$44,500,000 together with
interest and costs.
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34. LITIGATION (continued)

After seeking advice from its solicitor and counsel, the directors
considered that the Company has good grounds for appeal, and
has instructed its solicitor to launch an appeal against the
Judgment. On 28 March 2011, the Company filed a Notice of
Appeal against the Judgment with the Court of Appeal and
served on the parties concerned (the “CA Appeal”).

A separate hearing was held on 11 April 2011 on the issues of
interest and costs payable by the Company under the Judgment.
Pending the hearing of the CA Appeal, the Company’s exposure
on the costs of the Action and the appeal payable to the Plaintiff
would be approximately HK$86,500,000 which is estimated
based on the Principal Sum of HK$44,500,000 together with
accrued interest calculated up to the date of hearing of the CA
Appeal as well as the costs of the Action and the cost of the CA
Appeal payable to the Plaintiff. In addition, on 18 April 2011, the
Company and the Plaintiff has agreed that execution of the
Judgment be stayed until the determination or other disposal of
the CA Appeal or further order from the Court of Appeal subject
to the conditions that the Company shall pay into the High Court
a sum of HK$25,000,000 as security on or before 25 April 2011
and another sum of HK$25,000,000 or provide the Plaintiff with a
bank guarantee for the same amount as further security before
17 July 2011 (as extended to 19 August 2011 by a court order
dated 15 June 2011). Consent Order was granted by the High
Court on the same terms, in compliance with which the
Company has paid an aggregate amount of HK$50,000,000 into
the High Court on 21 April 2011 and 16 August 2011 respectively
and such amount was classified as other receivables as at 31
December 2011.

The CA Appeal was heard by the Court of Appeal on 8 and 9
December 2011 and the Court of Appeal unanimously ordered
that (a) the CA Appeal be allowed; (b) the Judgment be set aside
and the Action be dismissed; and (c) the Plaintiff do pay the
Company the costs of the CA Appeal and the costs at the court
below to be taxed, if not agreed (the “CA order”). The Court of
Appeal further ordered that the security in the sum of
HK$50,000,000 paid by the Company into the High Court be
released to the Company. The said security together with
interest earned were released by the High Court to the Company
on 5 January 2012.
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34.

122

LITIGATION (continued)

On 22 December 2011, the Plaintiff launched an appeal to the
Court of Final Appeal as of right under sections 22(1)(a) and 24 of
the Hong Kong Court of Final Appeal Ordinance, Cap. 484. On 9
May 2012 final leave was granted by the Court of Appeal to the
Plaintiff for appeal to the Court of Final Appeal and a Notice of
Appeal entitled FACV 9 OF 2012 (the “CFA Appeal”) was filed and
served by the Plaintiff on 16 May 2012. The CFA Appeal will be
heard by the Court of Final Appeal on 5 September 2013 (with 6
September 2013 reserved).

Both counsels and solicitor acting for the Company hold the
view that there is no merit in the Plaintiff's claim and in the CFA
Appeal. However, there is no mechanism built in the Hong Kong
Court of Final Appeal Ordinance for dismissal of unmeritorious
application for leave to appeal or unmeritorious appeal under
section 22 of the Hong Kong Court of Final Appeal Ordinance
and the Company has to deal with the hearing of the
unmeritorious CFA Appeal on 5 September 2013 (with 6
September 2013 reserved).

With the benefit of the advice of the counsels and solicitor acting
for the Company and the order delivered by the Court of Appeal
on 9 December 2011, the Company had also instructed its
solicitor to proceed with its claim for costs incurred in the Action
and the CA Appeal against the Plaintiff and the taxation thereof.

After seeking the advice of the counsels and solicitor acting for
the Company, the directors of the Company formed the opinion
that the Plaintiff did not have any valid claim against the
Company, and therefore it is unlikely to have any adverse
financial impact to the Company. Therefore, no further provision
for any losses on litigation was made in the consolidated
financial statements as at 31 December 2012. However, there
are still uncertainties on the outcome of the Plaintiff's appeal to
the Court of Final appeal and the directors are of the opinion
that the provision for losses on litigation previously made of
HK$86,500,000 (31 December 2011: HK$86,500,000) is adequate
and not excessive.
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35. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

36.

37.

During the year, the investment with a carrying amount of
HK$10,875,000 in the investments held for trading of the Group
was repurchased by ITCP with cash of HK$3,214,000 and a note
receivable with fair value of HK$8,587,000, details are set out in

note 18.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Pursuant to a placing agreement dated 22 January 2013, the
Company allotted and issued 53,000,000 shares at a placing
price of HK$0.23 per share on 31 January 2013.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY

35.

36.

FTEFAERS

FR - AREREEEZREDZEEERE
#10,875,0007C < B W 1B M B DA B B
3,214,0007t 2 B & K A F {8 /& 7 ¥ 8,587,000
TTZEBREBE - FEENMEE8

EHRzEE

BE_Z—=F—A-+ A0S
NER-_ZE—=F—A=+—"BREEBEER
7 0.23 JUHD B I %17 53,000,000 AL A% 17 ©

37. KRR EEMBRAAFHE

Place/country of Percentage of issued Proportion of voting
incorporation/  Particulars of capital held by power held by
Name of subsidiaries operation issued capital the Company the Company Principal activities
RiEwye *RAARE
WEAREH Benwd /AR CROREHE BRTREBEAL RATFBREELA TEER
2012 2011 Directly Indirectly
8- -T——% EE Rk
Beijing Kingstar Strategic PRC RMB2,000,000 of 100% 100% - 100%  Provision of property project
Property Consultants Limited* registered capital consulting, property agency and
related services in the PRC
I REREHESEARAR il AR2,000,0007T EREREMFBEES -
Bailhes MEREREBRS
Century 21 Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong 3,880,000 ordlinary shares 100% 100% - 100%  Provision of franchise, property
0f HK$1 each agency and related services in
Hong Kong and Macau
RN ERERAR ik 3380000 EREE EEBREFRERTELE
BT ERR MEREREBRS
Century 21 Property Agency Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - 100%  Provision of property agency and
Limited HK$1 each related services in Hong Kong
RN MEERAA A 2RGREBRL 1T EEBRUMEREREERS
LRk
Century 21 Surveyors Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - 100%  Provision of property project
HK$1 each consulting, property agency
and related services
21 A BTERAR i 00 REREEEE 12 RIEVZEARH MERER
LER BRRH

21 ZERERAT o« —T——FFR

123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. AA T T EMEB A TS &)

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Place/country of Percentage of issued Proportion of voting
incorporation/  Particulars of capital held by power held by
Name of subsidiaries operation issued capital the Company the Company Principal activities
RiiEAYe NG
WEARER BeEwd /AR CRORAHE ERTRABAL FARfBREELE TEER
2012 201 Directly Indirectly
B -—T——% EE ik
Guangdong Kingstar Strategic PRC RMB10,000,000 of 100% 100% - 100%  Provision of property project
Consultants Limited# registered capital consulting, property agency
and related services in the PRC
ERERFHEBNERAR H AR10,000,0007C ERERMENFIER RS
Balifie NERBREBRS
Guangzhou MAG Real Estate PRC RMB2,000,000 of 100% 100% - 100%  Provision of property project
Investment Consultants Limited? registered capital consulting, property agency
and related services in the PRC
BMERRRNEREHA i ARH2,0000007C ERERENEERFN
BRAR R MEREREARS
Jet Fame Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% - 100%  Trading of toy, gift and
HK$1 each premium products
HEERAT i 1REREERE T2 A BRRERERER
Kingbox Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ 1 ordinary share of 100%"* 100%# 100% - Investment holding
Hong Kong US$1 each
REEGES/ REREE1ELZ REER
Bk LER
Kingswick Strategy Limited HongKong 10 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - 100%  Provision of property agency
HK$1 each and related services
BEFERERAT i 0REREERE 1712 REMEREREBRE
Prosper Qverseas Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100%* 100%" 100% - Investment holding
HK$1 each
AEBINERAR it 2RBREEES 1T REER
LER
Smart Arrow Limited HongKong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% - 100%  Provision of property agency
HK$1 each and related services
BHERAR 6 TRERAEEE 1T REMEREREERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

37. ARBREXEMWB LTS ®)

Place/country of Percentage of issued Proportion of voting
incorporation/  Particulars of capital held by power held by
Name of subsidiaries operation issued capital the Company the Company Principal activities
Rt NG
WEARER BeEwd /AR CRORAHE ERTRABAL AR REELS TEER
2012 201 Directly Indirectly
“B-Zf -T——F% EE Bk
Spring Merit Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% - 100%  Security trading and investment
HK$1 each
YERRAT ik TREREERE 1T EHEERRA
Vantage Gain Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% - 100%  Security trading and investment
HK$1 each
ERFERRARA Bi TRERAEEE 1T EREERRA
Wiz Investments Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100%* 100%" 100% - Security trading and investment
HK$1 each
ZMREARAR i TRERREEE 1T BHEENRA
Wiz Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100%"* 100%* 100% - Provision of management services
HK$1 each t0 the Group
EHBERAR it 1RERAERE 1T AAEERHER RS
LRR
Yanyan Force Limited HongKong 100 ordinary shares of 60% 60% - 60%  Trading of toy, gift and premium
HK$1 each products
RRERAR Eh 100 BRAEEEE 172 A EnkEnERER
LRk
# Issued capital held directly by the Company # ARNEEERACBTHRA
*" The English names of the PRC companies are translation of their respective # ZEFERRIZAXEBWHEFAHP LR #
Chinese names included for information only and are not their official HEZ - YIFATRAH -
names.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group as at 31
December 2012 and 2011 which, in the opinion of the Directors,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

ERFINNEERAEARE ZRENEER
BIEREZAEER TR _F——
FHT-A=+—"RBZMBRA  -E=ZRA 1=
HEMHBRRZHBEHERRRENTTR -

WAFERGERBRREBTEMNEBES -
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Financial Summary

BB EE

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is as follows:

AEEBELEMRFE 2XE  BERBEHRDL

mF -

For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—2ENFE —ZEThEF —2EFF —T—F ZEB——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT BEET T BT BETIT BT T
RESULTS E
Revenue g 119,586 179,550 219,960 264,565 136,613
Loss before tax BB AT E R (205,937) (143,729 (239,881) (198,344) (65,860)
Income tax credit (expense) Frisfii e (Fs) 77 (559) (2,624) 4,141 8,801
Loss for the year KEFEZREIE (205,860) (144,288) (242,505) (194,203) (57,059)
Attributable to: FEAG -
Owners of the Company KATEB A (205,860) (144,288) (242,505) (189,511) (56,500)
Non-controlling interests ElE g - - - (4,692) (559)
(205,860) (144,288) (242,505) (194,203) (57,059)
At 31 December
BR+=—A=+-—H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—TRE\FE —TTNF —F-TF —T—F =S8 =F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEET I BET I BETIT BETIT BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEBE 309,911 409,703 251,268 369,203 301,521
Total liabilities BERE (253,458) (170,054) (201,157) (157,759)  (147,038)
Total equity =B 56,453 239,649 50,111 211,444 154,483
Attributable to: FEAG -
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZZ S DN 56,453 239,649 50,111 216,136 159,734
Non-controlling interests IEVE AR FE 2 - - - (4,692) (5,251)
56,453 239,649 50,111 211,444 154,483

126

21 HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2012



N

21 Holdings Limited’
212 BB R QT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(RBEFEEMA L BERAF)
Stock Code &7 X55% : 1003



	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	高級管理層簡歷
	企業管治報告
	董事報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	封底

